
Board of Supervisors 

Thursday, February 22, 2024 



Atkins District Charles E. Atkins 
Chilhowie District Michael L. Sturgill 
North Fork District Rick A. Billings 
Park District Kristopher S. Ratliff, DPh 
Royal Oak District S. Courtney Widener 
Rye Valley District W. Jason Parris 
Saltville District Roscoe D. Call 

County Administrator  Shawn M. Utt 
Asst. County Administrator – Operations Lisa Richardson 
Asst. County Administrator – Development Clegg Williams 
 

 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
SMYTH COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Thursday, February 22nd, 2024 
5:00 PM 

1) CALL MEETING TO ORDER Board Chair 
Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation 

2) AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA Board Chair 

3) PRESENTATIONS Board Chair 
a. Nichole Hair- Year in Review for Mt Rogers Reg’l Partnership
b. Davenport & Associates- Capital Funding & Affordability Analysis
c. Fred Pearson- Reassessment Process Update

4) PUBLIC HEARINGS Board Chair 
a. Dangerous Dog Ordinance

5) MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS Board Chair 
Minutes of the February 8th, 2024 meeting 

6) CITIZENS TIME       Board Chair
The Board welcomes your input. You may address the Board using the sign-in sheet located in the rear of the room. 
At this time, you may address the Board on items that may or may not be on the agenda. Time limit is three (3)
minutes. 

7) OLD BUSINESS Board Chair 
a. Committee Reports/ Recommendations

i. Appointment Committee
ii. Parks and Recreation Committee

iii. Transportation Committee

8) NEW BUSINESS Board Chair 

9) REPORT FROM COUNTY ATTORNEY Scot Farthing, County Att’y 

10) REPORT FROM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR / STAFF County Admin. / Staff 

11) SUPERVISOR COMMENT TIME Board Members 

12) CLOSED SESSION Board Chair 

13) RECESS UNTIL 7:00pm Board Chair  

14) JOINT PUBLIC HEARINGS WITH SMYTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(Reference attached Planning Commission Agenda for additional information)

Smyth County, Virginia  
121 Bagley Circle, Suite 100 
Marion, Virginia 24354 

1



Atkins District Charles E. Atkins 
Chilhowie District Michael L. Sturgill 
North Fork District Rick A. Billings 
Park District Kristopher S. Ratliff, DPh 
Royal Oak District S. Courtney Widener 
Rye Valley District W. Jason Parris  
Saltville District Roscoe D. Call 
 
County Administrator  Shawn M. Utt 
Asst. County Administrator – Operations Lisa Richardson 
Asst. County Administrator – Development Clegg Williams 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
February 16th, 2024 
 
To: Members, Smyth County Board of Supervisors 
 
CC:  Smyth County Leadership Team 
 
From: Shawn M. Utt, Smyth County Administrator 
 
RE: Packet summary –February 22, 2024, Board meeting 

 
 
Below are summaries related to specific agenda items. Should additional information become 
available, we will provide as quickly as possible: 
 
1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – The pledge of allegiance will be led by 

Dennis Greer, Building and Grounds Superintendent. The invocation will be provided by a local 
pastor. 
 

2. Amendments to the Agenda – if any are necessary, they will be presented at the meeting. 
 

3. Presentations  
 

a. Mount Rogers Regional Partnership –Nichole Hair, Executive Director will be in 
attendance to provide the Board with a Year- in review. 

b. Davenport & Associates – David Rose will be at the meeting to provide a Capital Funding 
and Affordability update. 

c. Pearson Appraisal Services – Mr. Pearson will be in attendance to go over the 
reassessment process.  

 
4. Public Hearings  

 
a. Dangerous Dog Ordinance–public hearing was set to update the Dangerous Dog 

Ordinance to reflect changes in state code, specifically to fees and fines. A copy of the 
current ordinance and state ordinance references are enclosed (Att. 1, Pg 4-10) for your 
review.  

 
5. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) – a draft copy of the minutes of the February 8th, 2024 

meeting are enclosed (Att. 2, Pg 11-22) for the Board’s review and approval. 
 
6. Citizen’s Time – Time has been set aside for citizens to provide comments to the Board on 

general items of interest or concern. 
 
 

2



 
 

7. Old Business Items: 
 

a. Committee Reports/ Recommendations:  
 

i. Appointment Committee– minutes of the meeting are enclosed for your review and 
information (Att. 3, Pg 23-25). In addition, items related to committee 
recommendations are also enclosed for your review. 

ii. Parks and Recreation Committee – minutes of the meeting are enclosed for your review 
and information (Att. 4, Pg 26-29). In addition, items related to committee 
recommendations are also enclosed for your review. 

iii. Transportation Committee – minutes of the meeting are enclosed for your review and 
information (Att. 5, Pg 30-40). In addition, items related to committee 
recommendations are also enclosed for your review. 

 
8. New Business: None. 

 
9. Report from County Attorney: Time has been reserved on the agenda to allow the County 

Attorney to provide input and various updates as needed.  
 

10. Report from County Administrator/Staff: Time has been reserved on the agenda to allow the 
County Administrator and/or staff to provide input and various updates as needed. 

 
11. Supervisor Comment Time: Roundtable discussion for individual Board members. 

 
12. Closed Session 

 
13. Recess Until 7:00pm 

 
14. Joint Public Hearings with Smyth County Planning Commission 

(Reference enclosed (Att. 6, Pg 41-223) Planning Commission Agenda for additional 
information) 

 
a. Public Hearing for Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2024  

 
15. Adjournment 

 
 

3



Excerpt from Smyth County Code 

   Created: 2023‐08‐01 15:05:11 [EST]

(Supp. No. 7) 

Page 1 of 3 

Sec. 8-132. Control of dangerous or vicious dogs. 

(a) Any animal control officer who has reason to believe that a canine or canine crossbreed within his
jurisdiction is a dangerous dog or a vicious dog shall apply to a magistrate of the jurisdiction for the issuance
of a summons requiring the owner or custodian, if known, to appear before a general district court at a
specified time. The summons shall advise the owner of the nature of the proceeding and the matters at
issue. If a law enforcement officer successfully makes an application for the issuance of a summons, he shall
contact the local animal control officer and inform him of the location of the dog and the relevant facts
pertaining to his belief that the dog is dangerous or vicious. The animal control officer shall confine the
animal until such time as evidence shall be heard and a verdict rendered. If the animal control officer
determines that the owner or custodian can confine the animal in a manner that protects the public safety,
he may permit the owner or custodian to confine the animal until such time as evidence shall be heard and a
verdict rendered. The court, through its contempt powers, may compel the owner, custodian or harborer of
the animal to produce the animal. If, after hearing the evidence, the court finds that the animal is a
dangerous dog, the court shall order the animal's owner to comply with the provision of this section. If, after
hearing the evidence, the court finds that the animal is a vicious dog, the court shall order the animal
euthanized in accordance with the provisions of section 8-131.

(b) No canine or canine crossbreed shall be found to be a dangerous dog or vicious dog solely because of its
particular breed. No animal shall be found to be a dangerous or vicious dog if the threat, injury or damage
was sustained by a person who was:

(1) Committing, at the time, a crime upon the premises occupied by the animal's owner or custodian;

(2) Committing, at the time, a willful trespass or other tort upon the premises occupied by the animal's
owner or custodian; or

(3) Provoking, tormenting, or physically abusing the animal, or can be shown to have repeatedly provoked,
tormented, abused or assaulted the animal at other times.

No police dog which was engaged in performance of its duties as such at the time of the acts complained of shall 
be found to be a dangerous dog or a vicious dog. No animal which, at the time of the acts complained of, was 
responding to pain or injury, or was protecting itself, its kennel, its offspring, or its owner or custodian's property 
shall be found to be a dangerous dog or a vicious dog.  

(c) The owner of any animal found by a court to be a dangerous dog shall, within ten days of such finding, obtain
a dangerous dog registration certificate from the animal control officer for a fee of $50.00 in addition to
other fees that may be authorized by law. The local animal control officer shall also provide the owner with a
uniformly designed tag which identifies the animal as a dangerous dog. The owner shall affix the tag to the
animal's collar and ensure that the animal wears the collar and tag at all times. All certificates obtained
pursuant to this section shall be renewed annually for the same fee and in the same manner as the initial
certificate was obtained. The animal control officer shall provide a copy of the dangerous dog registration
certificate and verification of compliance to the state veterinarian.

(d) All dangerous dog registration certificates or renewals thereof required to be obtained under this section
shall only be issued to persons 18 years of age or older who present satisfactory evidence of the animal's
current rabies vaccination, if applicable, that the animal has been neutered or spayed, and that the animal is
and will be confined in a proper enclosure or is and will be confined inside the owner's residence or is and
will be muzzled and confined in the owner's fenced-in yard until the proper enclosure is constructed. In
addition, the owners who apply for certificates or renewals thereof under this section shall not be issued a
certificate or renewal thereof unless they present satisfactory evidence that their residence is and will
continue to be posted with clearly visible signs warning both minors and adults of the presence of a
dangerous dog on the property and the animal has been permanently identified by means of a tattoo on the

4

Attachment 1



Excerpt from Smyth County Code 

   Created: 2023‐08‐01 15:05:11 [EST]

(Supp. No. 7) 

Page 2 of 3 

inside thigh or by electronic implantation. All certificates or renewals thereof required to be obtained under 
this section shall only be issued to persons who present satisfactory evidence that the owner has liability 
insurance coverage, to the value of at least $100,000.00 that covers animal bites. The owner may obtain and 
maintain a bond in surety, in lieu of liability insurance, to the value of at least $100,000.00.  

(e) While on the property of its owner, an animal found by a court to be a dangerous dog shall be confined
indoors or in a securely closed and locked structure of sufficient height and design to prevents its escape or
direct contact with or entry by minors, adults, or other animals. The structure shall be designed to provide
the animal with shelter from the elements of nature. When off its owner's property, an animal found by a
court to be a dangerous dog shall be kept on a leash and muzzled in such a manner as not to cause injury to
the animal's vision or respiration, but so as to prevent it from biting a person or another animal.

(f) The owner of any dog found to be dangerous shall register the animal with the Commonwealth's Dangerous
Dog Registry, as established under Code of Virginia, § 3.1-796.93:3, within 45 days of such a finding by a
court of competent jurisdiction. The owner shall also cause the animal control officer to be promptly notified
of:

(1) The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all owners;

(2) All of the means necessary to locate the owner and the dog at any time;

(3) Any complaints or incidents of attack by the dog upon any person or cat or dog;

(4) Any claims made or lawsuits brought as a result of any attack;

(5) Tattoo or chip identification information or both;

(6) Proof of insurance or surety bond; and

(7) The death of the dog.

(g) After an animal has been found to be a dangerous dog, the animal's owner shall immediately, upon learning
of same, cause the local animal control authority to be notified if the animal:

(1) Is loose or unconfined;

(2) Bites a person or attacks another animal; or

(3) Is sold, given away, or dies. Any owner of a dangerous dog who relocates to a new address shall, within
ten days of relocating, provide written notice to the appropriate local animal control authority for the
old address from which the animal has moved and the new address to which the animal has been
moved.

(h) If the owner of an animal found by a court to be a dangerous dog is a minor, the custodial parent or legal
guardian shall be responsible for complying with the requirements of this section.

(i) Any owner or custodian of a canine or canine crossbreed or other animal is guilty of:

(1) A Class 2 misdemeanor if the canine or canine crossbreed previously declared a dangerous dog
pursuant to this section, when such declaration arose out of a separate and distinct incident, attacks
and injures or kills a cat or dog that is a companion animal belonging to another person.

(2) A Class 1 misdemeanor if the canine or canine crossbreed previously declared a dangerous dog
pursuant to this section, when such declaration arose out of a separate and distinct incident, bites a
human being or attacks a human being causing bodily injury.

The provisions of this subsection (i) shall not apply to any animal that, at the time of the acts complained of, was 
responding to pain or injury, or was protecting itself, its kennel, its offspring, a person, or its owner's or custodian's 
property, or when the animal is a police dog that is engaged in the performance of its duties at the time of the 
attack.  

5



Excerpt from Smyth County Code 

   Created: 2023‐08‐01 15:05:11 [EST]

(Supp. No. 7) 

Page 3 of 3 

(j) The owner of any animal which has been found by a court to be a dangerous dog who willfully fails to comply
with the requirements of this section shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.

(k) All fees collected pursuant this section, less the costs incurred by the animal control authority in producing
and distributing the certificates and tags required by the section, shall be paid into a special dedicated fund
in the treasury of the county for the purpose of paying the expenses of any training course required for such
animal control officer under the Code of Virginia, § 3.1-796.104:1.

(Ord. of 10-8-1996, § 10-59.3) 

State law reference(s)—Similar provisions, Code of Virginia, § 3.1-796.93:1. 

6



Code of Virginia 
Title 3.2. Agriculture, Animal Care, and Food 
Subtitle V. Domestic Animals 
Chapter 65. Comprehensive Animal Care 
Article 6. Authority of Local Governing Bodies

§ 3.2-6540.01. Obligations of officer and owner following
dangerous dog finding
A. After an animal is found to be a dangerous dog pursuant to § 3.2-6540, the local animal
control officer or treasurer shall provide the owner with a uniformly designed tag that identifies
the animal as a dangerous dog. The owner shall affix the tag to the animal's collar and ensure
that the animal wears the collar and tag at all times.

B. Within 30 days of the finding that an animal is a dangerous dog pursuant to § 3.2-6540, the
owner shall:

1. Provide documentation that the animal has been neutered or spayed;

2. Provide documentation that the animal has been implanted with electronic identification
registered to the owner. The registration information shall be provided to the animal control
officer;

3. Present satisfactory evidence to the animal control officer of liability insurance coverage, to
the value of at least $100,000, that covers animal bites. The owner may obtain and maintain a
bond in surety to the value of at least $100,000 in lieu of liability insurance;

4. Pay to the local governing body a fee of $150 and under the direction of the animal control
officer complete a dangerous dog registration certificate issued by the Department pursuant to §
3.2-6542. No dangerous dog registration certificate required to be obtained under this section
shall be issued to any person younger than 18 years of age; and

5. Post the residence where the animal is housed with clearly visible signs warning both minors
and adults of the presence of a dangerous dog on the property. Such signs shall remain posted at
all points of entry to the home and yard as long as the animal remains on the property.

C. Any dangerous dog not confined inside a locked enclosure constructed pursuant to subsection
D shall be (i) confined inside the owner's residence or (ii) if outdoors, controlled by a physical
leash employed by the responsible adult owner and securely muzzled in a manner that does not
cause injury to the animal or interfere with the animal's vision or respiration but prevents it from
biting a person or another animal.

D. Any owner of a dangerous dog who keeps the dog outdoors and not within the immediate
physical presence of its owner shall, within 30 days of the finding that an animal is a dangerous
dog, cause to be constructed a secure, locked enclosure of sufficient height and design to prevent
escape by the animal or entry by or direct physical contact with any person or other animal.
While so confined within the structure, the animal shall be provided for according to § 3.2-6503.

E. The owner of a dog found to be dangerous shall cause the local animal control officer to be
promptly notified of (i) any change in the manner of locating the owner or the dog at any time;
(ii) any transfer of ownership of the dog to a new owner, including the name and address of the

1 2/16/2024 12:00:00 AM

7

/vacode/3.2-6540/
/vacode/3.2-6540/
/vacode/3.2-6542/
/vacode/3.2-6503/
sutt
Highlight



new owner; (iii) any instance in which the animal is loose or unconfined; (iv) any complaint or
incident of attack or bite by the dog upon any person or cat or dog; (v) any claim made or lawsuit
brought as a result of any attack; and (vi) the escape, loss, or death of the dog.

F. Unless for good cause shown, the owner of a dangerous dog shall notify the animal control
officer at least 10 days prior to moving or relocating the animal and the officer shall update the
dangerous dog registry accordingly.

G. Any dangerous dog not reclaimed by the owner from the animal control officer within 10 days
of notice to do so by such animal control officer shall be considered abandoned and may be
disposed of according to the provisions of § 3.2-6546.

H. Any contract or agreement for the use of real property, including a recorded restrictive
covenant, condominium instrument of a condominium created pursuant to the Virginia
Condominium Act (§ 55.1-1900 et seq.), declaration of a common interest community as defined
in § 54.1-2345, or cooperative instrument of a cooperative created pursuant to the Virginia Real
Estate Cooperative Act (§ 55.1-2100 et seq.), may prohibit the keeping of a dangerous dog or
otherwise impose conditions that are more restrictive than those provided in subsection B.

I. The owner of a dog found to be dangerous shall maintain the liability insurance coverage or
bond in surety required by subdivision B 3 as long as he owns the dangerous dog and shall submit
a certificate of insurance or evidence of such bond to the animal control officer on an annual
basis.

2021, Sp. Sess. I, c. 464.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.

2 2/16/2024 12:00:00 AM

8

/vacode/3.2-6546/
/vacode/55.1-1900/
/vacode/54.1-2345/
/vacode/55.1-2100/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?212+ful+CHAP0464


Code of Virginia 
Title 3.2. Agriculture, Animal Care, and Food 
Subtitle V. Domestic Animals 
Chapter 65. Comprehensive Animal Care 
Article 6. Authority of Local Governing Bodies

§ 3.2-6542.1. Renewal of dangerous dog registration
A. By January 31 of each year, until the animal is deceased, the owner of an animal found to be a
dangerous dog pursuant to § 3.2-6540 shall update and renew the dangerous dog registration
certificate obtained pursuant to § 3.2-6540.01 for a fee of $85 in the same manner as the initial
certificate was obtained. However, if the dangerous dog adjudication occurred within 60 days of
the end of the calendar year, the first renewal shall be included in the initial registration at no
additional charge to the owner.

B. Prior to the renewal date of a dangerous dog registration each year, a local animal control
officer shall conduct an inspection of the dangerous dog and the premises on which it is kept,
and no certificate of renewal shall be issued without such inspection. The animal control officer
shall post registration information on the Virginia Dangerous Dog Registry established by § 3.2-
6542.

C. No dangerous dog registration certificate required to be obtained under this section shall be
issued to any person who is younger than 18 years of age or who fails to present satisfactory
evidence of (i) compliance with the provisions of §§ 3.2-6540, 3.2-6540.01, 3.2-6540.02, 3.2-
6540.03, and 3.2-6540.04;(ii) the animal's current rabies vaccination, if applicable; and (iii) a
current county or city dog license, as appropriate.

2021, Sp. Sess. I, c. 464.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.

1 2/16/2024 12:00:00 AM

9

/vacode/3.2-6540/
/vacode/3.2-6540.01/
/vacode/3.2-6542/
/vacode/3.2-6542/
/vacode/3.2-6540/
/vacode/3.2-6540.01/
/vacode/3.2-6540.02/
/vacode/3.2-6540.03/
/vacode/3.2-6540.03/
/vacode/3.2-6540.04/
/vacode/3.2-6540.04/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?212+ful+CHAP0464
sutt
Highlight



The Smyth County Board of Supervisors held its regular meeting on Thursday, February 8, 
2024 at 5:00 p.m. The location of the meeting was in the First Floor Board Room of the County 
Office Building, 121 Bagley Circle, Suite 100, Marion, Virginia. 

PRESENT: Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins; Rye Valley District 
Supervisor Jason Parris; Park District Supervisor Kristopher 
Ratliff; Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill; Royal Oak 
District Supervisor Courtney Widener; Saltville District 
Supervisor Roscoe Call; North Fork District Supervisor Rick 
Billings 

ABSENT: None. 

STAFF: County Administrator Shawn Utt; Assistant County 
Administrator – Operations Lisa Richardson; Assistant County 
Administrator – Development Clegg Williams; Executive 
Assistant Auna Louthian; County Attorney Scot Farthing.  

OTHERS: Smyth County News & Messenger; Smyth County Sheriff’s Deputy 
and citizens 

2/8/2024 5:01 PM Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins called the meeting to 
order and welcomed everyone.   

2/8/2024 5:02 PM Kenneth Pennington led the Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Alan Gray 
gave the invocation. 

2/8/2024 5:04 PM A motion was made by Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener to 
approve the minutes from the January 25, 2024, meeting as presented. Chilhowie District 
Supervisor Michael Sturgill seconded the motion. 

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

2/8/2025 5:09 PM Assistant County Administrator, Lisa Richardson, reviewed the following 
County financial information. 

10

Attachment 2



SMYTH COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
THURSDAY, February 8, 2024 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING 
January 2024 

Request approval of the following payables: 

  General County  - Regular Checks $2,392,490.52 

  Fund 4  EDA - Regular Checks  $9,473.17 

  Fund 302 Public Safety Radio $0.00 
  Fund 505 Transfer Station-Regular Checks $24,025.00 

 Accounts Payable Listing - December 2023 $2,425,988.69 

  Fund Accounts - Manual Checks 

  Fund 501 Water Deposit Refunds $0.00 
  Fund 747 Sheriff State Asset Forfeiture $350.49 
  Fund 748 Sheriff Purchase of Equipment $2,741.54 
  Fund 749 Recovery Court $3,411.48 
  Fund 760  Commonwealth Attorney Federal Drug Asset $0.00 
  Fund 770 Circuit Court Clerk - Holding Account $237.33 

Total Fund Accounts $6,740.84 

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - January 2024 $2,432,729.53 

2/8/2024 5:09 PM A motion was made by Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call to approve 
the accounts payable listing as presented. Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener 
seconded the motion. 

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

2/8/2024 5:09 PM Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins opened citizen’s time. 

11



2/8/2024 5:09 PM Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins entered the following 
letters into the record: 

12



2/8/2024 5:13 PM Tom Hosteler of 226 Swamp Road, Troutdale, Brenda Shepherd, and Patty 
Blevins all spoke with concern regarding Washington County closing the convenience station 
in Konnarock as well as cell phone service in the area.  

2/8/2024 5:18 PM Roby Parks Jr. of 187 Churchland Drive, Atkins VA asked for updates 
regarding the nuisance complaint across the street with continued concern for the health and 
safety of himself and his neighbors. Mr. Farthing updated that he is working though extended 
family for property ownership to serve the correct people with the violation. 

2/8/2024 5:30 PM Commissioner of Revenue Bradley Powers updated the Board on his first 
month in office and offered to answer any questions at any time. 

2/8/2024 5:30 PM Anna Lee Debord of 343 College St. Marion, VA. Mrs. Debord is a 
volunteer member for the Smyth County Museum. Mrs. Debord updated the Board about the 

13



civil war uniform and upcoming schedule with the museum. Mrs. Debord thanked the Board 
for their continued support.  

2/8/2024 5:42 PM With no one else wishing to speak, Chair, Atkins District Supervisor 
Charles Atkins closed citizen’s time. 

2/8/2024 5:42 PM Mr. Utt read the minutes from the January 31st Budget Committee meeting 
and presented the following recommendations: 

Item #1: 

• Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener made a motion to recommend approving
budget amendment #6 in the amount of $81,072 for FY23/24 as presented. Chilhowie District
Supervisor Michael Sturgill seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

RESOLUTION  
SMYTH COUNTY BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 – AMENDMENT #6 

WHEREAS, the Smyth County Board of Supervisors, on June 8th, 2023 adopted the Fiscal Year 
2023/24 Budget in the original amount of $132,444,641; and  

WHEREAS, in the meeting of August 24th, 2023 the Smyth County Board of Supervisors adopted an 
amended budget (Budget amendment #1) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $135,536,020; and 

WHEREAS, in the meeting of September 14th, 2023 the Smyth County Board of Supervisors adopted an 
amended budget (Budget amendment #2) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $135,436,104; and 

WHEREAS, in the meeting of November 9h, 2023 the Smyth County Board of Supervisors adopted an 
amended budget (Budget amendment #3) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $135,839,906; and 

WHEREAS, in the meeting of December 14h, 2023 the Smyth County Board of Supervisors adopted an 
amended budget (Budget amendment #4) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $136,471,806; and 

WHEREAS, in the meeting of January 25th, 2024 the Smyth County Board of Supervisors adopted an 
amended budget (Budget amendment #5) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $136,471,806; and 

WHEREAS, the aggregate amount of budget amendment #6 is $81,072 which would increase the Fiscal 
Year 2023/24 budget to a total of $140,059,644 as shown in greater detail on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Smyth County Board of Supervisors sets forth and 
approves the amended Smyth County Budget for the Fiscal Year 2023/24 in the amount of $140,059,644. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the approval of this budget amendment #6 shall indeed constitute an 
appropriation of the same funds.   

Adopted this the 8th day of February 2024 

SMYTH COUNTY  
ATTEST: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Shawn M. Utt, Clerk Charles Atkins, Chair 

14



15



After consideration, the Budget Committee recommendation PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

Item #2: 

Mr. Utt also discussed a VRS option the County can provide to Law Enforcement Officers (aka, 
LEOs) as an enhanced multiplier for hazardous duty benefit. The benefit would increase the 
multiplier from 1.7% to 1.85% and cost is based on all county employee salaries. Due to Mr. 
Widener’s employment with the Smyth County Sheriff’s Office, he requested the item go to the 
full Board without a formal recommendation from the Budget Committee.  

• Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill made a motion to approve the VRS
enhanced hazardous duty retirement benefit multiplier option of 1.85% for all Smyth
County Law Enforcement Officers effective July 2024. North Fork District Supervisor
Rick Billings seconded the motion.

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES: Chair Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, and  
Park District Supervisor Kristopher Ratliff. 

NAYS: None. 
ABSTAINERS:  Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener. 
ABSENT: None. 

2/8/2024 5:49 PM Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener read the minutes from 
the January 31st Public Safety Committee meeting. Informational only, no action taken at this 
time. 

2/8/2024 5:51 PM Mr. Williams presented the following recommendations from the 
Planning Commission from their meeting held on January 25, 2024: 

Charles Bridgers rezone request: 

• After discussion, Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors
approve Mr. Charles Bridgers request for a map amendment to rezone his property from
Residential to Agriculture/Rural. The property is identified a s tax map number 65-A-48K
and is located across from 2121/beside 2085 Scratch Gravel Road, Marion. The motion
was seconded by Ms. Meadows and unanimously approved by the Planning Commission.

After review and consideration, the following motion was made: 

16



• Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener made a motion to follow the Planning
Commission’s recommendation and approve the request of Mr. Charles Bridgers for a map 
amendment to rezone his property from Residential to Agriculture/Rural. The property
is identified a s tax map number 65-A-48K and is located across from 2121/beside 2085
Scratch Gravel Road, Marion. Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill seconded the
motion.

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

DeBusk Farms LLC special use permit for recreational vehicle park: 

• Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors approve DeBusk
Farms LLC’s special use permit for a Recreational Vehicle Park on property identified
as tax map number 41-A109B, located between 1528 and 1366 Buckeye Hollow Road,
Saltville, with the condition it expires in six years. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Campbell and unanimously passed.

After review and consideration, the following motion was made: 

• A motion was made by Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener to follow the
Planning Commission’s recommendation and approve DeBusk Farms LLC’s special use
permit for a Recreational Vehicle Park on property identified as tax map number 41-A-
109B, located between 1528 and 1366 Buckeye Hollow Road, Saltville, with the condition
it expires in six years. Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill seconded the motion.

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

James Harper special use permit for service business: 

• Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors decline the special use
permit requested by Mr. James Craig Harper for a service business on property identified
as tax map number 41A-4-2, located beside 74 South Wood Lane, Saltville. The motion
was seconded by Mr. Campbell and unanimously passed.

17



• After further discussion, Mr. Davidson Jr. made a motion to recommend the Board of
Supervisors schedule a public hearing to consider a map amendment to rezone Mr.
Harper’s property from Agricultural/Rural to Commercial. The motion was seconded by
Mr. Spence, and the following vote was recorded.

2/8/2024 5:54 PM Mr. Williams introduced Mr. Haper who was unable to attend the Public 
Hearing to hear comments on his request. Mr. Harper shared his frustrations with neighbors 
not in agreeance with any business he attempts to put in. Mr. Harper stated he did approach 
all the surrounding neighbors prior to purchasing the property to make sure they would be 
okay with the service business he planned to locate on the property. Mr. Utt then read the 
following letter from the neighbors who were not in attendance into the record: 

• Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill made a motion to table the current request
for Special Use Permit and to schedule a joint public hearing for consideration of rezoning
Mr. Craig Harper’s property identified as tax map number 41A-4-2, located beside 74
South Wood Lane, Saltville from Agricultural/Rural to Commercial and table the special
use permit request made by Mr. Harper. Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener
seconded the motion.

18



After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

2/8/2024 6:15 PM Mr. Utt presented an updated resolution for Project Pathfinder in 
partnership with the Legal Aid Society of Southwest Virginia. Mr. Utt shared the Board had 
approved a similar resolution for this project in January but Mr. Carico has been directed by 
the Virginia Opioid Abatement Authority to reapply for a regional effort for Project Pathfinder 
and needs a revised resolution to reflect that. 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR VIRGINIA OPIOID ABATEMENT AUTHORITY 
COOPERATIVE PARTNERSHIP GRANT FUNDING 

WHEREAS, the Smyth County Board of Supervisors seeks to mitigate and abate the impacts of the 
opioid epidemic throughout Smyth County; and  

WHEREAS, the mission of the Virginia Opioid Abatement Authority (OAA) is to abate and 
remediate the opioid epidemic in the Commonwealth through financial support in the form of grants, 
donations, or other assistance; and  

WHEREAS, the OAA operates a financial assistance program to support certain cooperative 
partnerships of cities and/or counties in Virginia that implement regional efforts to treat, prevent, and 
reduce opioid use disorder and the misuse of opioids; and   

WHEREAS, Smyth County joins other Southwest Virginia counties who have committed to work 
together to develop and jointly submit an application for regional cooperative partnership funding from 
the OAA for Project Pathfinder operated by the nonprofit organization Southwest Virginia Legal Aid; 
and   

WHEREAS, all Southwest Virginia partnership counties are located within the same region, 
Region 3, of the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services; and   

WHEREAS, Smyth County agrees they will execute a legally binding operational agreement 
formalizing the cooperating partnership if the application for financial assistance is approved; and   

WHEREAS, Smyth County has agreed to serve as the fiscal agent for the cooperative partnership 
if it is awarded; and   

WHEREAS, Smyth County supports the request for grant funding from the OAA for Fiscal Year 
2025, with plans by the partnership to apply for renewal funds for fiscal years 2026-2029; and    

WHEREAS, in support of this cooperative partnership, Smyth County has agreed to allocate 
$10,000.00 of its Direct Distribution OAA funds for Fiscal Year 2025 and has agreed to review the 
allocation amount annually in support thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Smyth County Board of Supervisors hereby 
authorizes Shawn Utt, Smyth County Administrator to execute the grant application to the Virginia 
Opioid Abatement Authority, to accept the grant award, and to execute all documents in connection 
therewith. 

ADOPTED this 8 day of February, 2024. 

19



SMYTH COUNTY 
ATTEST: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Shawn M. Utt, Clerk of the Board Charles Atkins, Chair 

• Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill made a motion to approve the Resolution
of Support for Project Pathfinder and Providing Signatory Authority for the proposal for
grant funding from the Virginia Opioid Abatement Authority. Saltville District Supervisor
Roscoe Call seconded the motion.

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

2/8/2024 6:19 PM County Attorney Report - 

County Attorney, Scot Farthing shared he has prepared the deed for the Saltville Rescue Squad 
property and is requesting the formal acceptance from the Board. 

• Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener made a motion to accept ownership of
126 Battle Ground Avenue, Saltville, VA 24370 identified as tax map number 28A4-A-10.
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris seconded the motion.

After consideration, the motion PASSED by the following vote: 

AYES:  Chair, Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins, 
Vice Chair, Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill, 
Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener, 
North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings, 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, 
Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris, and 
Park District Supervisor Kristoper Ratliff. 

NAYS:  None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

2/8/2024 6:22 PM County Administrator Report - 

Mr. Utt updated the Board on VDOT projects that were previously requested as well as a 
reassessment update. 

20



2/8/2024 6:28 PM Supervisor Comment Time -  

Park District Supervisor Kristopher Ratliff thanked everyone for their hard work. 

North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings shared his appreciation for the staff.  

Atkins District Supervisor Charles Atkins shared his condolences for Jesse Choate’s family. Mr. 
Atkins also thanked staff for organizing the recent VACO trip and appreciated the chance to go 
speak on behalf of Smyth County. 

Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris also shared his condolences for Mr. Choate’s family. 
Mr. Parris also thanked staff for organizing VACO and said he believes it was a successful trip. 
He then thanked Mrs. Deel for her impact she had on the community being Rye Valley’s 
representative the past four years. 

Chilhowie District Supervisor Michael Sturgill shared information about the Teachers for 
Tomorrow program as well as the State Superintendent for VA making a trip to Smyth County 
next week with hopes of rolling out a similar program throughout the state. Mr. Sturgill shared 
his condolences for Mr. Choate’s family. Mr. Sturgill shared his appreciation of the impact Mr. 
Choate had on his community as a public servant with a true heart for students.   

Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener shared his appreciation for the well-
organized VACO trip. Mr. Widener also shared his condolences for Mr. Choate’s family and his 
appreciation for the special place Mr. Choate will always hold in the community and hopes to 
carry on in a direction he would appreciate. He thanked the Board for their willingness to work 
together and always put citizens first. 

Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call thanked staff and shared his condolences for Mr. 
Choate’s family. Mr. Call wished everyone a safe trip home.  

2/8/2024 6:45 PM With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned. 

21



A meeting of the Smyth County Appointment Committee was held at the County Office Building on 
Thursday, February 15th, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. 

Committee Members Present: 
Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call, Chair 
Royal Oak District Supervisor, Courtney Widener 

Staff Members: 
County Administrator, Shawn Utt  
Assistant County Administrator – Development, Clegg Williams 
Executive Assistant, Auna Louthian 

Saltville District Supervisor Roscoe Call called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

Mr. Utt presented the following recommendations for appointment to the Board of Equalization: 

Doug Armstrong, 262 Mitchell Valley Drive, Marion, Virginia 24354            
Vickie Stamper, 552 Belle Hollow Road, Chilhowie, Virginia 24319 
Lou Don, 946 Middle Avenue, Marion, Virginia 24354 
Norman Sparks, 496 Hummingbird Lane, Ceres, Virginia, 24318 
Tom Copenhaver, PO Box 149, Marion, Virginia 24354 

Mr. Utt shared these citizens have each served in the past and are well versed in the process. He 
noted that we still need at least 2 recommendations for alternates if the Committee is aware of 
anyone that would be interested in serving. 

• Royal Oak District Supervisor Courtney Widener made a motion to recommend appointing
Doug Armstrong, Vickie Stamper, Lou Don, Norman Sparks, and Tom Copenhaver to the Board
of Equalization to expire one year after the effective date of the assessment of 2024. Saltville
District Supervisor Roscoe Call seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 10 a.m. 

22

Attachment 3



23

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Polygon

sutt
Highlight

sutt
Highlight



24



A meeting of the Parks and Recreation Committee was held at the County Office Building on 
Thursday, February 15th, 2024, at 10 a.m. 

Committee Members Present: 
Park District Supervisor, Kristopher Ratliff, Chair 
Royal Oak District Supervisor, Courtney Widener 
Chilhowie District Supervisor, Michael Sturgill 

Staff Members: 
County Administrator, Shawn Utt  
Assistant County Administrator- Development, Clegg Williams 
Assistant County Administrator- Operations, Lisa Richardson 
Recreation Coordinator, Jeff Smarr 
Executive Assistant, Auna Louthian 

Park District Supervisor Kristopher Ratliff called the meeting to order at 10 a.m. 

Mr. Smarr shared updates of his work towards a tackle football program for the fall. He is planning 
to begin practices the second week of July and is working hard toward that goal. Mr. Smarr is 
planning to hold four organizational meetings in March at Atkins Elementary (March 4th), Sugar 
Grove Elementary (March 7th), Marion Elementary (March 12th), and Oak Point Elementary (March 
14th) noting that if a parent/child can’t make it to their own school’s meeting, they would be 
welcome to join any of the other dates. Mr. Smarr shared his plans for good working relationships 
with each town and school.  

Mr. Smarr discussed his request for stipends for a “football director” and “cheerleading director” 
noting these two individuals would be instrumental in helping to organize the two programs and to 
help recruit volunteers for coaching needs. He suggested stipends of $1,500 for each position per 
season to which the committee concurred. Mr. Smarr noted he had some people in mind and would 
plan on continuing conversations with them in hopes of finalizing things in the coming weeks. 

Mr. Smarr also shared quotes for a variety of equipment that will be needed as we move toward the 
season, such as additional helmets and shoulder pads. He noted that the equipment that was 
donated by the Town of Marion would be relocated to the Atkins education building as a temporary 
location for Smyth County Recreation and that 135 helmets had been shipped to Riddell to be 
inspected/certified as required.  

The meeting was informational only, no action taken. 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 

25

Attachment 4



26



Pay online at Riddell.com or Remit to:
RIDDELL ALL AMERICAN SPORTS
PO BOX 676256
DALLAS TX  75267-6256
USA
FED I.D. 34-1688715 Order By LISA RICHARDSON

Order By Email LRICHARDSON@SMYTHCOUNTY.ORG

Phone 276-706-8305

SHIP TO:2634564

SMYTH COUNTY BOS REC

121 BAGLEY CIR STE 100

MARION VA  24354

USA

BILL TO:93591

SMYTH COUNTY BOS REC

121 BAGLEY CIR STE 100

MARION VA  24354

 Sales Rep  SCOTT SMITH  Cart Name  helmet and pad pricing
 Sales Rep Email  SLSMITH@RIDDELLSALES.COM

QUOTE as of 02/12/2024
Attached: Order Line Details for Custom Products Only

Total Savings Value from Catalog Prices $ 78.00 

Quote Date

02/12/2024

QT#

20262320

Customer  PO Requested Date

02/26/2024

Payment terms

30 days Due net

Ship Via

FedEx Ground

Item Material Item Description Color XS S M L XL 2XL OTH QTY UnitPrice Ext Price

   100 FB_HELMET_VIC_I  VICTOR-I White    1 130.00 

 VIC-I YTH  (XXS - XL)    1    1 130.00 

   200 R48346 PURSUIT 2024 SHOULDER PAD M    1    1 52.00 52.00 

*Thank you for your order. If you have any issues with your order upon arrival, Please contact your sales representative or customer Order Total USD 182.00 

service at 800-275-5338 within 10 days of receipt. All returned items require a return authorization  and are subject to a 25% Freight/Handling USD 22.45 

restocking fee. All invoices not paid with in invoice terms are PAST DUE and subject to a FINANCE CHARGE at a monthly  rate Sales Tax USD 0.00 

of 1.5%. Payment Received    (0.00 )

** Applicable Sales Tax shown on this order may not be accurate and will be adjusted at the time of invoicing. Total USD 204.45 

Page :1 of  2   27



SO# - Item : 20262320 -     100 FB_HELMET  

Helmet Model Victor-I

Helmet Shell Color White

Helmet Paint Option Area 1 Not required

Face Guard Color Light gray

Convert To Black Parts Not required

Convert to NFL(no logo) Not required

Install Decals No

Quantity Of Helmet Sizes 1

SIZE1

Helmet qty 1

Helmet size Small_Medium

Helmet z-pad type 1 1" Gray S

Helmet Chin Strap Style 1 R45767 soft cup mid
youth

Helmet chin strap color 1 White

Helmet chin strap qty 1 1

Helmet face guard style 1 S2BD-HS4

Helmet face guard qty 1 1

Page :2 of  2   28



A meeting of the Transportation Committee was held at the County Office Building on Thursday, 
February 15th, 2024, at 3:30 p.m. 

Committee Members Present: 
North Fork District Supervisor, Rick Billings, Chair 
Royal Oak District Supervisor, Courtney Widener 
Rye Valley District Supervisor, Jason Parris 

Staff Members: 
County Administrator, Shawn Utt  
Assistant County Administrator- Development, Clegg Williams 
Executive Assistant, Auna Louthian 

Guests:  
Residency Administrator for VDOT, Jeff Harrison 
Assistant Residency Engineer for VDOT, Pam Heath 
Land Use Engineer for VDOT, Rachel Brown 

North Fork District Supervisor Rick Billings called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

The committee discussed current roads on the 6 Year Plan as well as potential roads that are 
eligible. Mrs. Brown shared the eligibility requirements for a new road to be added to the plan 
includes a 16-foot road as well as a minimum of 50 vehicles traveling the road per day. She also 
noted that budget projections were updated for the existing roads in the plan and that available 
funding was still in question. With budget constraints in mind, the Committee discussed the 
feasibility of adding to the current plan and following the conversation, the following motion was 
made: 

• A motion was made by Rye Valley District Supervisor Jason Parris to schedule a public
hearing for April 11th at 5pm or thereafter to hear comments on the proposed continuation
of the 6 Year Plan with no additional roadways to be added at this time. Royal Oak District
Supervisor Courtney Widener seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 

29

Attachment 5



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



Atkins District Hazel L. Wagoner 
Chilhowie District Graham S. Davidson Jr. 
North Fork District Robert Campbell 
Park District Lea Meadows 
Royal Oak District Anthony “Tony” Ray Dean 
Rye Valley District Paul D. Shepherd  
Saltville District David L. Spence 
Zoning Administrator Clegg Williams 
Zoning Administrator, Clerk Becca Creasy 

 
  

 
 
 
 

A G E N D A
Thursday, February 22, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 

Should additional information become available, we will provide it to you as quickly as possible. 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
2. Adopt Agenda 
3. Adopt Minutes of January 25, 2024, meeting
4. Zoning Administrator updates
5. Citizens Time
6. Other Business; if any
7. Questions/Comments from Commissioners
8. Recess

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING WITH BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
7:00 p.m. 

9. Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Planning Commission call the joint public
hearing to order.

10. Hill Studio presentation: Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth2044
https://www.smythcounty.org/government/boards___committees/planning_comm
ission.php

11. Adjourn public hearing.
12. Reconvene Planning Commission meeting to deliberate Comprehensive Plan.
13. Adjournment.

Smyth County 
Planning Commission 

121 Bagley Circle, Suite 120 
Marion, Virginia 24354 

Clerk’s Direct Phone: (276) 706-8316 
Fax: (276) 783-9314 

41

Attachment 6

https://www.smythcounty.org/government/boards___committees/planning_commission.php
https://www.smythcounty.org/government/boards___committees/planning_commission.php


Note from Clerk: These minutes are written as the agenda was presented.  Some voters may appear out of order. 

SMYTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, January 25, 2024 

The Smyth County Planning Commission met in their regular meeting on Thursday, January 25, 
2024, at 6:30 P.M. in the Smyth County Office Building. 

Commissioners Present: Hazel Wagoner, Chairperson, Atkins District; Graham Davidson Jr., 
Vice-Chairmen, Chilhowie District; Lea Meadows, Park District; David Spence, Saltville District; 
Tony Dean, Royal Oak District; Paul Shepherd, Rye Valley District; and Robert Campbell, North 
Fork District. 

Staff Present: Clegg Williams 

At approximately 6:30 p.m. Mrs. Wagoner called the meeting to order. 

Adoption of Agenda: Mrs. Wagoner opened the floor for motions to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Mr. Spence made a motion which was seconded by Ms. Meadows, and unanimously 
carried. 

Election of Officers: 

Mrs. Wagoner made a motion to nominate Clegg Williams as the Temporary Chairman and was 
seconded by Mr. Spence and unanimously carried. 

Chairman: Mr. Williams then opened the floor for nominations of Chairman for calendar year 2024. 
Mr. Spence nominated Mrs. Wagoner for Chairperson; it was seconded by Mr. Davidson.  With 
no other nominations, Mrs. Wagoner was elected to serve as Chairperson for 2024, with the 
following vote recorded. 

Vote: 6 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd and Spence 
1 abstain Wagoner 

Vice-Chairman: Mrs. Wagoner opened the floor for nominations of Vice-Chairman for calendar 
year 2024.  Mr. Spence nominated Mr. Davidson Jr. for Vice-Chairman; it was seconded by Mr. 
Dean.  With no other nominations, Mr. Davidson Jr. was elected to serve as Vice-Chairman for 
2024, with the following vote recorded. 

Vote: 6 yeas Campbell, Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 
1 abstain Davidson Jr. 

Secretary: Mrs. Wagoner opened the floor for nominations of Secretary for calendar year 2024. 
Mr. Spence nominated Mr. Dean; it was seconded by Mr. Davidson Jr.  With no other nominations, 
Mr. Davidson Jr. was elected to serve as Secretary for 2024, with the following vote recorded. 

Vote: 6 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Meadows Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 
1 abstain Dean 

42



Clerk: Mrs. Wagoner opened the floor for nominations of Clerk for calendar year 2024.  Mr. Spence 
nominated Becca Creasy, with the recommendation of Kelsey Marchant and Clegg Williams as 
alternates.  It was seconded by Mr. Davidson Jr.  With no other nominations, Ms. Creasy was 
elected to serve as Clerk, and Ms. Marchant and Mr. Williams as her alternates, for 2024.   

Vote: 7 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 

Set Calendar for 2024: Mr. Spence made the motion to set the meetings for the fourth Thursday 
at 6:00 or 6:30 p.m., except for November and December due to Thanksgiving and Christmas.  
November’s meeting is set tentatively for Thursday, November 21st; December’s meeting is set 
tentatively for Thursday, December 19th.  Mr. Shepherd seconded the motion, and the following 
vote was recorded. 

Vote: 7 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 

Minutes: Mr. Spence made the motion to approve the minutes of the Thursday, November 16, 
2023, meeting.  Mr. Davidson Jr. seconded the motion, and the following vote was recorded. 

Vote: 7 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 

Adopt Operating Procedures: Mr. Spence made a motion to adopt the operating procedures as 
presented.  Ms. Meadows seconded the motion, and the following vote was recorded. 

Vote: 7 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 

Adopt Annual Report for 2023: Mr. Davidson Jr. made a motion to adopt the annual report as 
presented.  Mr. Spence seconded the motion and unanimously passed. 

Vote: 7 yeas Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 

Ordinance Committee Appointments: Mrs. Wagoner asked for volunteers to serve on the 
Ordinance Committee for 2024.  Mr. Campbell, Ms. Meadows, and Mrs. Wagoner volunteered to 
serve for 2024. 

Citizens’ Time: No citizens were present. 

Other Business:  Mr. Dean recommended resending conflict of interest forms. 

Questions/Comments for the Commissioners: None. 

Recess: At approximately 6:45 p.m., Mrs. Wagoner recessed the Planning Commission’s meeting 
until their 7:00 p.m. public hearing. 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING WITH BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1/25/2024 8:24 PM Chairperson Wagoner reconvened the Planning Commission meeting and 
opened the floor for comments and questions. 

1/25/2024 8:25 PM After discussion, Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of 
Supervisors approve Mr. Charles Bridgers request for a map amendment to rezone his property 

43



from Residential to Agriculture/Rural.  The property is identified as tax map number 65-A-48K and 
is located across from 2121/beside 2082 Scratch Gravel Road, Marion.  The motion was 
seconded by Ms. Meadows and unanimously passed. 
 
Vote: 7 yeas   Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 
  
 
1/25/2024 8:25 PM Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors approve 
DeBusk Farms LLC’s special use permit for a Recreational Vehicle Park on property identified as 
tax map number 41-A-109B, located between 1528 and 1366 Buckeye Hollow Road, Saltville, 
with the condition it expires in six (6) years.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Campbell and 
unanimously passed. 
 
Vote:  7 yeas   Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 
 
1/25/2024 8:26 PM Mr. Spence made a motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors deny the 
special use permit requested by Mr. James Craig Harper for a service business on property 
identified as tax map number 41A-4-2, located beside 174 South Wood Lane, Saltville.  The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Campbell and unanimously passed. 
 
Vote: 7 yeas  Campbell, Davidson Jr., Dean, Meadows, Shepherd, Spence and Wagoner 
 
1/25/2024 8:31 PM After further discussion, Mr. Davidson Jr. made a motion to recommend the 
Board of Supervisors schedule a public hearing to consider a map amendment to rezone Mr. 
Harper’s property from Agricultural/Rural to Commercial.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Spence, and the following vote was recorded. 
 
Vote:  5 yeas   Davidson Jr., Meadows, Shepherd, Spence, and Wagoner 
 0 nays 
 2 abstains  Campbell and Dean 
 
1/25/2024 8:35 PM Mr. Spence made a motion to adjourn which was seconded by Mr. Davidson 
Jr. and unanimously passed. 
 
 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Tony Dean, Secretary 

44



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan  
Smyth County, Virginia

 

 

45



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

2 
 

Plan Smyth is YOUR plan. 
 

surveys  
 

 
 
 

 
 

Planning Commission  
 

 
Hazel L. Wagoner, Atkins District 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Clegg Williams – Development 
 

Board of Supervisors 
 

 
 

Mike Sturgill, District  
 

Atkins 
 

 
 

Focus Group – Community  
 

 
Lori Deel, Vice-Chair 

Dennis Greer 
 

Manuel Street 
 

 
 

46



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Focus Group – Housing & Land Use 
 

Clegg Williams, Chair  
 

Manuel Street 
 

Focus Group – Industry & Business 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Focus Group –  

 
 

 
 

 
Focus Group – Tourism, Cultural, Historic & Natural Resources  

 
Hazel Wagoner, Chair 

 
 

 
 

Manuel Street 
 

 
Focus Group – Agriculture  

 
 

 
 

Kristy Waller  
Shannon Williams 

 
 
 
 
 
 

47



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Focus Group –  
 

Lori Deel, Chair  
 

Pam Heath 
Mason Gragg 

 
 
 

 
 

Focus Group –  
 

Lori Deel, Chair 
 

 
Dr. Dennis Carter 
Dr.  

Dr.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PlanSmyth 2044   
 

 
Date Adopted _____________ 

48



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Contents 
I.  ....................................................................................................................8 

1.1 Purpose and Use of the Comprehensive Plan ............................................................................. 8 
1.2 Overview of Smyth County .......................................................................................................... 8 
1.3 Vision and Goals for the Future ................................................................................................... 9 

Vision for PlanSmyth 2044 ................................................................................................................... 9 
Goals for PlanSmyth 2044 .................................................................................................................... 9 

1.4  ..........................................................  
1.5  ...............................................................................................  

II. Planning Process ....................................................................................................................... 15 
2.1 Development of the Plan .................................................................................................................  

 ...................................................................................................................................  
III. Smyth County & The Region ...................................................................................................... 19 

3.1 Brief History of Smyth County .........................................................................................................  
3.2 Smyth County & the Regional Context ............................................................................................  

 .............................................................................................. 22 
MOUNT ROGERS PLANNING DISTRICT .................................................................................................. 22 
REGIONAL ENTITIES & AUTHORITIES .....................................................................................................  
SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA CULTURAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION/ FRIENDS OF SWVA ..............................  
JEFFERSON NATIONAL FOREST ..............................................................................................................  
HUNGRY MOTHER STATE PARK .............................................................................................................  
3.4 Long-  ...............................................................................  

WYTHE COUNTY .................................................................................................................................  
GRAYSON COUNTY .............................................................................................................................  
WASHINGTON COUNTY ......................................................................................................................  
RUSSELL COUNTY ................................................................................................................................  
TAZEWELL COUNTY ............................................................................................................................ 28 
BLAND COUNTY .................................................................................................................................. 29 

 .....................................................................................  
TOWN OF MARION .............................................................................................................................  
TOWN OF CHILHOWIE ........................................................................................................................  
TOWN OF SALTVILLE ...........................................................................................................................  
ADWOLFE ............................................................................................................................................  

49



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

ATKINS ................................................................................................................................................  
SEVEN MILE FORD ..............................................................................................................................  
SUGAR GROVE ....................................................................................................................................  

3.6 Smyth County Demographic & Economic Trends ...........................................................................  
DEMOGRAPHICS .....................................................................................................................................  

POPULATION ......................................................................................................................................  
RACE AND ETHNICITY .........................................................................................................................  
AGE ......................................................................................................................................................  
INCOME ...............................................................................................................................................  
EDUCATION.........................................................................................................................................  

    EMPLOYMENT .....................................................................................................................................  
COMMUTER PATTERNS ......................................................................................................................  
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE ......................................................................................................................  
WAGES ................................................................................................................................................  

IV.  .............................................................. 43 
 ........................................................................................................  

4.1.1 HOUSING .......................................................................................................................................  
 .....................................................................................................  

 ...............................................  
4.1.2 EDUCATION ...................................................................................................................................  

 .................................................................................................  
 ...........................................  

4.1.3 RECREATION ..................................................................................................................................  
 ................................................................................................  

 ..........................................  
4.1.4 COMMUNITY FACILITIES & SERVICES ...........................................................................................  

 .........................................................  
 ...  

4.2 ECONOMY ......................................................................................................................................... 89 
4.2.1 AGRICULTURE ................................................................................................................................ 89 

 .............................................................................................. 89 
 .......................................  

4.2.2 BUSINESS CENTERS AND CORRIDORS...........................................................................................  

50



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 ........................................................  
  

4.2.3 INDUSTRY ....................................................................................................................................  
 ..................................................................................................  

 ............................................  
4.2.4 TOURISM .....................................................................................................................................  

 ...................................................................................................  
 .............................................  

4.3 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE ......................................................................................................... 115 
4.3.1 PUBLIC UTILITES ..........................................................................................................................  

 .......................................................................................  
 .................................  

4.3.2 TRANSPORTATION ......................................................................................................................  
 ....................................................................................  

 ..............................  
4.4 NATURAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES ........................................................................................ 149 

4.4.1 NATURAL RESOURCES .................................................................................................................  
 ...............................................................................  

 ........................  
4.4.2 CULTURAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES .......................................................................................  

4.5 LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT ................................................................................................. 169 
 .......................................................................................................... 184 

 ..........................................................................................................  
Housing –  ................................................................................  
Business Development – Incubator Space ......................................................................................  

– Holston River Blue Ways & Hungry Mother Creek Greenway ...................  
Rural Economic Development – Sugar Grove “Trail Village” Micro-Mixed-Use Concept ..............  
Community Cohesion –  .................................................................  

5.1  ..................................................................................................................  
 

 

 

  

51



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

8 
 

I.  

 

1.1 Purpose and Use of the Comprehensive Plan  

over the 

creates a long-
, 

prop
 

-  roa parking, 
community 

 

to 
 the 

Comprehensive Plan.  

1.2 Overview of Smyth County  

al 
. 

T , , -
- , Smyth County is  

- ther 
– as well as  s 

 

 
 also 

turmoil 
ies to locate  

 

 

52



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

9 
 

1.3 Vision and Goals for the Future 

 in this Comprehensive Plan 

 

VVision for PlanSmyth 2044 

In 2044, Smyth County will be recognized as a peaceful, friendly, healthy, and scenic community with a 

 land can be found surrounding established towns, , 
 in order to provide ample opportunity for agri

support current and future residents of the county, 
County will host high-quality schools with state-of-the-
for employment, strong partnerships 
robust well-educated 

, as well as capitalize 

zens of Smyth County cherish their laid-back,  lifestyles, 
natural surroundings, and desire to sustain their community and quality of life for their children, families, 

 

Goals for PlanSmyth 2044 

Economy 

Agriculture – 

.  

Industry – 
high-
investment into the community, increase  

 

Business Centers & Corridors – I
 

. 

Tourism – 
regional economy, capitalize 

 

53



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

PPeople & Quality of Life 

Housing – -

 

– s 

-rate, well-  
high-  

– 

 

 – 
resources -

 

 

Natural Resources – 
.  

– 
 

Historic & Cultural Resources 

Historic & Cultural Sites – 
s 

 

 

– 

 

Public Infrastructure – 
y 

 s  

Public Safety – 
-

law 
  

 

54



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

LLand Use & Development 

Orderly Growth – 
 

– 
, 

 

 

1.4  

PlanSmyth  Comprehensive Plan, there are several 

 

Economic Development  

 

on 

the ment  cial, retail, 

Smyth County.  

the Sugar Grove “Trail Town” Micro-Mixed-Use Concept). 

 

 

in 

-

, – -how – 

Business Incubator Space as well as a Makerspace to support small  in their early stages. These 

Incubator Space in 
Marion/Chilhowie/Saltville  

 

55



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 
on

s 

 on 
trails,  

parity, 
, it 

parity

, 
 A

The Holston River Blue Way
strategically   

Community Cohesion  

engagement process, -knit community 
 . Yet, it was also s  

-to-  -
 

  
 community cohesion in Smyth County. 

is 
  

makes telling 

  

Concepts st- -
 spark community . These plans, 

ns, churches s, are  improving 
community cohesion throughout Smyth County.  

 

 

56



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

-  , 
in or looking to relocate to 

 
 

 

towns in the county 
 , with 

 

Land Use & Development  

  
; 

.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

1.5 PlanSmyth 2044 

PlanSmyth 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary 

 

County Vision,  

Points 

Community 
Planning 
Process 

How The Plan Was 
 

 

Community 
 

Smyth 
County & 

The Region 

County 

 

Smyth 
County 
Today & 

Tomorrow 

Current 

Challenges, 

 

Plan Imp-
 

Projects 

 

Goals / Policies, 
Strategies, 
Partners, 

  

58



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

II. Planning Process
22.1 Development of the Plan 

PlanSmyth  -

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

progress

   

 

 

 

 

Hill Studio & Smyth County Booth at 
the Northwood vs. Marion High 
School Rivalry Football Game 
by Hill Studio and County Employees 

 

 

 

 

 
In Person 

Hungry Mother 

Chilhowie Apple 
 

 

Demographic 

Assessment 

Market 
 

Census Data 
Special 

 
 

 

Development 
Workshop 

 

Community 
Input 

 

Comprehen-
sive Plan 

 
Planning 
Commission 

 

 
 

59



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

High vs. Marion High), The Hungry 

lasses to 
 

 

Phrases Describing Smyth County 

   
 .

-
maintains the small-

Smyth that r
 

Biggest Strengths and Weaknesses of Smyth County 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Biggest Strengths Biggest Weaknesses 

60



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 
 

 es  restaurants - all three phrases hint at 
.  

What is your Vision for the Future (10 to 20 Years) 

 

 

 

Primary Findings from the Survey 

In summary, survey responses 

• "A
• "A  
• "  
• "I  
•  
• 

visitors" 
• 

 
• "I  
• "  
•  
• Drug Issues  

Challenges  
  
  
  

 
 -ups 
  
  
 

spaces) 
  

Vision for Smyth County 
  
  
  
  

Primary 
Survey 

Findings 

61



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

  
  
 Encouraging agriculture as an  
 -  
 Improving  
 on-the-  
  
 

Atkins)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

III. Smyth County & The Region 

 

thouse was 
. Ever since, 

  

 access salt 

t
 

-

ry year.  

Haystacks in Field Near Marion –  Saltville Early 1900’s (Right) (Source: Library of Congress) 

63



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

33.2 Smyth County &  

 

I-

-  in close 
-

r. 
These three rivers es , where 

, 
 

Smyth County is largely agrarian, 

purposes, -
 

, -  

  

64



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

Smyth County Landscapes 
- Appalachian Trail near -

- -
- - -

Single-  - Airport near -
 

 

65



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

22 
 

&  

 
Planning District, -

Planning District Commission serves the c

 

2018-2023 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

 

 

chemical-

 

 

 

 , 
  

 

2011-2035 Mount Rogers Rural Long-  

 

 

 

 
-

 throughout the 
region.  

 

 

 

66



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 and ‘Round the Mountain’ 
Network 

 Virginia 
-

 

 

 

Mount Rogers Regional Partnership  

 
- -

 

Smyth County Chamber of Commerce 

 This county-

 

New River / Mount Rogers Workforce Development Board 

 

ustry sectors. 

Southwest Virginia Alliance for Manufacturing 

 

mechanics. 

Smyth County Public Libraries 

 
three towns – -

 

 

67



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Smyth Wythe Airport Commission 

 
,  

 

 

lle 

 

 

Center in Marion a satellite 
-  

 

 

-

 , 

– 

 

 

  

 

HUNGRY MOTHER STATE PARK  

, 
central Smyth County, 

68



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

-

, 
visitors per year, 

as well as the 
 

-  

WYTHE COUNTY 

- - , 

one 

  
 

The 2040 Wythe County Plan 
- , 

 

-  

GRAYSON COUNTY 

 
, 

 
s, there are three census-  

Stevens Creek. US 
, which runs north-to-

is 

69



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 
i

economy.  

The Grayson County Virginia 2018 Comprehensive Plan 

nal 
-to-

 

 

-
 

- -
centers; 
across the county are VA- - -

VA- - -
the county is  

, 
throughou

; 
; 

Tennessee.  

The Washington County Comprehensive Plan in 
  

increasing the 

ho -
-

inesses throughout the county, 
ing 

70



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

, 

als 
-  

 
 

RRUSSELL COUNTY 

coal mining, 

 the largest 
the , 

County is US- -to- - -to-South), 
- - -

agriculture mo

, 
on/

or 
, 

employs many locals.  

the Comprehensive 
 

 
-

-
- - -

-

unty-

 -use trails, a state 
park), support  

 the 
, like the 

71



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

28 
 

-
s 

ng 
improvements to VA- -

 

TTAZEWELL COUNTY 

s, 
, ; , ; , 

Pocahontas, 
Spr - , 

-
-

- ategory 

 

Tazewell County 2017 Comprehensive Plan 

-
-

US-  I-

to emergency servi  
s

 to 

 

county-

protect prime 
-

-
ment 

72



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

29 
 

overall  

, 

oppor  

 

 

-  
, o

is I- , 
-

County is a rural county with 
, as well as the mountainous 

, 

-  

Bland County Comprehensive Plan (2018) 

- . T

Transporta
 This goal 

 
an

 

 he 

73



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

-

County

 To meet this goal, ing 

o support 
-

, agricultural 
 

-
 

comprehensive plan
 

among  
-

.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

our census 
, 

, 
 

con

 

a stop 
, 

Southwest Virginia, over the 

I- -

 

Although I-

, 
, 
 

2018 Town of Marion Comprehensive 
These  goals are:  

  
 

 
  
  
 -  

Photo of  Downtown Marion, Virginia 

75



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

  
  
  
 

 
  
  

 

  

a stagecoach 

-

lowing the 

cial 
 

u
Historically, , n; 
important  

 

. U
- th 

District,  

, 
 

 Land Use Development
environment.  

 Economic Development
 

Photo of Downtown Chilhowie, Virginia 

76



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 Housing -economic 
segments. 

  
 Environmental

 

 

-historic 

history have 

 

-

also  

 

, 
-knit, small-

 

 

 Housing and Land Use
 

 Economic Development
 

Photo of Downtown Saltville, Virginia 

77



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 Community Development  
   
 Services  
 Infrastructure  

 
-

-

g

I-

.  

 

 
-

-

e to numerous 

 

 

 

 

Photo of  

Photo of  

78



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 
census-  

 

-
-

ntly, Seven 
-
to the 

 

 

SUGAR GROVE 
-

-

central

tly 

maj -
-to 

 

 

Photo of a Barn Near Sugar Grove 

Photo of I-81 Near Seven Mile Ford 

Photo of on Sugar Grove Highway 

79



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

& Economic Trends 

DEMOGRAPHICS  

 

POPULATION 

The 

  

County 

, 

 

years, 

al  

Percentage Population Change from 2000 to 2020 in Smyth County, Surrounding 
Counties, and the State of Virginia 

Population Projections for Smyth County (Projections Extrapolated from 2020 Census 
using annual growth rate projections from UVAs Weldon Cooper Center 

80



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

RACE AND ETHNICITY 

,

.  2.8 two or more races .9

historically, 

increases among those who 

 

 

 

 

AGE 

, 

with Virginia as a whole, Smyth County 

 

improve the local economy in the 

Race and Ethnicity of Smyth County’s 
Population, 2021 & Race in Smyth 

County 2000 to 2020 (Source: 2021 
US Census Bureau Estimates, 2000 to 

2020 US Census Bureau) 

Median Ages in Smyth County, Surrounding Counties, and Virginia (Source: 
US Census 2020 ACS) 

81



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

. 

  

 

 

INCOME 

The 

lower than those the 

, 

ten) in Smyth County live in poverty.  

Age Distributions in Smyth County, 
Surrounding Counties, and Virginia (Source: 

US Census 2020 ACS) 

Median Household Incomes in Smyth County, Surrounding 
Counties, and Virginia (Source: US Census 2020 ACS 5- Year 

Estimates) 

Distribution of Household Incomes – LLeft & Median Household Income 2000 to 2020 - RRight (Source: US Census 2020 ACS 5-
Year Estimates, 2000 to 2020 US Census Bureau) 

82



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

EDUCATION 

, 

- , 

have some college or an associate 

 

 

Educational Attainment of Population Age 25 Years or Older in Smyth County 
(Source: US Census 2020 ACS 5- Year Estimates) 

Educational Attainment of Population Age 25 Years or Older in Smyth & Surrounding Counties (Source: US Census 2020 
ACS 5-Year Estimates) 

83



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

EMPLOYMENT  

in Smyth County. The largest non-

, 

as it was  years ago – a new census is currently 
– ure 

employees are 
 

 

the Southwest Virginia 
Mental Health Center
Services. 
 

 Employment in Smyth County by Sector, 2022 (Source: Lightcast (Emsi)) 

Top 10 Employers in 

Smyth County  

 

1.  
2.  
3.  
4. Southwest Virginia Mental Health 

Center 
5. General Dynamics   
6. Westlake Management Services 
7. Smyth County 
8.

Center 
9. Scholle Packaging Inc 
10.  

84



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

COMMUTER PATTERNS 

Smyth County serves as an employment 
center in the region 
net import 
people commute into 
work than commute out

people commute into Smyth County to 

 

or southwest to Washington County. 

 

Inflow and Outflow of Jobs in Smyth County (Source: 2019 US Census) 

Workers Live & Work in 
Smyth County 

4,185 

People Commute Into 
the County a Day 

4,905 4,852 

People Commute Out 
of the County a Day 

 

Job County by Distance/Direction Where Workers Live (Left) and Work (Right) (Source: US 
Census On The Map) 

85



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

UNEMPLOYMENT RATE 

The unemployment rate in 
Smyth County was 

 , slightly 
higher than 
Virginia, which 

 . 

in Smyth County was 

-

unemployment rate was at 

unemployment in the 

ross the region, -
 

WAGES 

Average weekly 
wages across all 

Smyth County 
were 

, with 

to the VEC, the 

weekly wages in 
Smyth County was 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Unemployment Rates in Smyth County, Surrounding Counties, and Virginia (Source: US 
Bureau of Labor Statistics) 

Average Weekly Wages in Smyth County (Source: Virginia Employment Commission) 

86



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

IV. Smyth County Planning Elements 
 

– 
 s 

. 
.  

4.1 People &  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

88



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.1.1 HOUSING 

 

 

 

Percentage of Owner – 
Occupied Housing 

70.1% 

Median Value of Owner – 
Occupied Housing 

$99,500 

Median 
Sales Price 

$159,900 

SOLD 

Percentage of Renters 
Cost-Burdened  

38% 

RENT

Percentage of Owners 
Cost-Burdened  

15% 

Housing Price Increase 
Since 2020 

34% 

89



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Housing Type and 
Tenure 

county is owner-

currently renter-

housing stock 
single-  

-
  

historically as well, with 

single-

-

single-

- single-  
-  

 

 

 

 

House Types in Smyth County Between 2000 and 2020 (Source: US Census Bureau) 

90



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Age of Housing 

Housing stock in Smyth County 
is aging, 

, 

 
s 

new housing. 

 

Housing Values 

-

at which the house was 

va

, with a 
recent increase in Southwest 

-
This those in  

; ho
 

county. 

County (Source: US Census Bureau 
2020 ACS 5-

Median Value of Owner-
and Virginia (Source: US Census 2020 ACS 5-

91



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

sales price 

concern. In Smyth County,  
 -

on housing. 
 

 
, with only 

. 

   

While housing values in Smyth County are 

it
consistently over the last ten years with an 

previous two 

ur -
many sellers in Smyth County having 

increasing housin
just two years. 

have risen slowly over the last three years, 

 market in which homes are 

-   

-Occupied Housing in Smyth 
County (Source: US Census 2020 ACS 5-  

Median Home Values in Smyth County (Source: Zillow.com) 

Median Listed Home Price in Smyth County (Source: Virginia 

92



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

compiling a complete image 

their home, there is a 

or mortgage is typically 

cost-  
, among those who 

, 

cost-
, the 

cost-
renters in the county is on 
the rise  
cost-
increasing r over 
the last 

own their home, the 

are cost-  

nevertheless, 

-  

Gross Rent as a Percentage of Household Income in Smyth County (Source: US 
Census 2000 to 2020 ACS 5-  

Monthly Owner Costs as a Percentage of Household Income in Smyth County 
(Source: US Census 2000 to 2020 ACS 5-  

93



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Examples

Examples of Single-Family Homes Duplex Style Housing (Right) in eastern Smyth County 

Example of Housing Over a Former Storefront  in central 
Smyth County 

94



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
, -

h

e 
 

 

Diversify Housing Types and Costs – 

to
, which will help all 

socio-
 
 

Focus New Development & Redevelopment in Populated Areas – 
sprawl 

, which will make 
 

– 
Health Science , 

-
-  

-term rentals ome, or 
-

, or townhomes, 

 

95



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 & Redevelopment – With an aging housing stock, historic homes, 

the 

using market. Although 

-  

Develop Senior Housing – 

another as t

 

-Family Housing – single-  homes were the 
, especially in the 

; , a single-  home in the county was roughly 
, 

cau

single-
new single- o the 

, as well as engaging strategic 
), has the 

Grow 
Smyth County 

 

 

 

 

96



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

  

 

 

Shared green –

 

, 
  

 

-

 

 

 

  
  
 

What is a Planned Unit 
Development? 

97



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

98



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

4.1.2 EDUCATION 

 

Smyth County Public Schools 

As 
-

, 
, 

, on 
, no school 

 

seven elementary schools, three 
three one 

, 
- -

- -  al 

i – th 
. Smyth 

 

2022-2028 Smyth County 
Public Schools Comprehensive Plan   years. This comprehensive plan 

the m  

  
o  -  
o Implement  
o  

  
o 

-  
o -person learning 

 
o Evaluate teacher shortage areas to strategize ways 

 
 Parent and Community Involvement 

99



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

o  -
risk   

o   
o services.  

  
o 

revise ) 
 

o improvements.  
 Technology 

o classroom.  
o - is 

. 
o 

 

 -2023 

Atkins Elementary School –  
 

Chilhowie Elementary School –  
 

Chilhowie High School -  
 

 -8 
 

Marion Elementary School  –  
 

 -8 
 

Marion Senior High School -  
 

 -  
 

 -8 
 

Point Elementary School –  
 

 –  
 

Saltville Elementary School –  
 

 –  
 

Sugar Grove Elementary School –  
 

100



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

- , 
- who 

homeschooling are th  

- capstones with 

yth Career 

Community College.  

yellow pin represents the Smyth County Caree  

 

 

101



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

Although there are no main campuses 
-Year 

, 
there is are satellite campuses 

Wytheville Community College  

Science Campus 

; while WCC 

-WEST, WCC  

center. hese campuses, 
 to Smyth County

Community College, 
is rs two-

per year. With nal programs, s 
 

 Wytheville Community College  
o 

-
 

o 

Wel

 
o s short-

-

 
- .  

 Virginia Highlands Community College 

Emory & Henry University’s Health Science Campus (2023) 

102



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

o  
Industrial Technology 

Healthcare -Pharmacy, 
etc.), Public Service 
Agriculture & Natural Resources Business. 

o -

ewal.  
 

College  

, -
i – 

College 
County – – , 

– Athens) ast Tennessee State University  

Smyth County Promise  

The Smyth County 

-year 
with t . All 

or receiving this 

. 

 

Across Smyth County, 
eight  

Saltville.  

, 
 

Environmental & Hands-  

-on 
 

103



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

m

 
ng 

at

 -on 

s ces 

County.  

Hungry Mother State Park’s – Discovery Center 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Blue Ridge Discovery Center 

 

 

 

 

 

Exterior of the Discovery 
 

104



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

The Henderson School 

Appalachian Arts, is a center where 

horizons. Currently, 

-
person 

Certainly, a 

culture  

, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

- , 
-  to

th 

regional colleges. Post-

- -level 

- -

 
 

– 
- - -

The East Strother Street Façade of The Henderson School 

105



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

-
n 

support 
 invest in 

who 
, -enrollment courses 

-
 

Advocate for Increased Funding – , , 

. 
s 

the county. 

Consider the Expansion of the Career and Technical Center – 

the  

– Currently, 

pathways programs such as Dual-  

-
opp ,  

– 
s 

classes, all  as 

College); 
.  

Support  – 

 

Conduct Full Childcare Study for Smyth County – 
- - pre-

, 

106



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

-

 
 in the county, 

 

Increase the N – 

county. This not 
also 

, 
overall economic output.  

on of an  – 

-  the 

-
-

, 

.  

 County Promise –  County Promise seeks to lower the 

, Smyth County 
t 

 
 

-op – 
Smyth County, 

107



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

s , 

county-  homeschooling cooper

 

 – 
- t-

Dealership in 
classes. Howe , 

m
s  it is likely that a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

110



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.1.3 RECREATION 

 

Public Parks  

 

 Chilhowie 
o 

in central Chilhowie, -
a a picnic shelter, a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Marion 
o Riverbend Playground

. 
o Chatham Hill Playground:  this park 

 
o Royal Oak Playground: 

a 9-
 

All Parks and 

Chilhowie
Virginia 
(2023) 

111



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

o Steele Park Playground: 
 

o Civitan Park: 
 

o Riverwalk Trail: 

at either e .  
o Royal Oak Park Field: 

 
o 

- , -  
o Band Field: 

-season, -
  

o VFW Field: 
-  

o Marion Middle School Field:  
t- -  

o Marion Senior High School Tennis Courts: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All Parks and 

Marion
Virginia 
(2023) 

112



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 Saltville 
o Well Fields 

 
o Hardy Roberts Memorial Wave Pool is - oot- - -

in the warmer months.  
o Saltville Golf Club  
o Saltville Ball Fields

t-  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

earlier
est  

are  
 , e). 

 

 

US  Service\

All Parks and 

Saltville
Virginia 
(2023) 

113



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

s 
 

 Hungry Mother State Park

Smyth County, 
 state parks, 

. Hungry Mother is a state 

-

, with 

 
 

T
al 

 

. 
no hook-  no 

, 
currently there are electric ; however there is a 

  

114



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

southe
 

 Clinch Mountain Wildlife 
Management Area

southwest Virginia countr

 

within this area. T
 

 South Fork of the Holston River

 

, 

– – 

– 

ch 
catch- -  well as 

-

to have 
.  

115



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

 

Establishment of a County- – 

, 
the 

-

 
-ow

 at the county level rather than the municipal level, which will alleviate municipal 
county, a county-

. , -step project that will not happen overnight steps towar  
-

. 
  

county-  
 

  in 
county-  . 

-  
 ings is 

likely . 

– 

s . As a result, 

investments  ll 

ich  

Leverage  – Due to the presence 
 

116



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

, 

, it can also 
  or 

economy.  

 – 

-

, 
cluster  to improve 

.  

Disability-Friendly   – 

 who have 

gravel),  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

 

 

118



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 
& Services 

119



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.1.4 COMMUNITY FACILITIES & SERVICES 

 

-

 

LIBRARIES 

three 
 

three 

-
 access - -

 

seven-  

, which 
m

 

COMMUNITY CENTERS 

Two 
, one is 

 two other centers are 

Konnarock area.  centers 
 

, 
while the other 
congregate  

 

 

120



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 – 
Chilhowie Street, Marion, VA  

 – 
Marion, VA 

 ter – 
Ave, Saltville, VA 

 Konnarock Community Center – 
 

 –  
Stone  

 

 

 

 

 

 

HEATH, WELLNESS, & SOCIAL SERVICES 

, 
, as well 

region 

-

non- -  

This lis
community centers. Typically these centers are not 

 regularly serve a primary purpose that is 
  

 

etc.) 
  
  
  
  

 

Konnarock Community Center in Konnarock 

Spaces 

 in Riverside 

121



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

.  

, 

ram), 
As

 

, with the 

 

 Smyth County Community Hospital

services, a -
, 

 
, ,  

 Southwest Virginia Community Health Systems  
Virginia Community Health Systems currently operates  

 
-  

 Southwest Virginia Regional Dental Center
Systems, the 

-rays,  canals, 
crowns, 

 
  The Southwestern Virginia Mental Health 

, the SWVMHI 
is a -  

,  
 Mel Leaman Free Clinic  

well as helping 
 

 
 

 

122



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 Konnarock Family Health Center  
 primary 

  Stone 

Virginia.  
 

 Adult Care Services   in the county 

 
PACE   

 

 The Appalachian Center for HOPE 

 will  recovery, 
reentry,  

 The Mount Rogers Community Services is a regional not- -
-

 

r 

 
 is a non-

, 
rmers 

-
-home 

 
 - local churches, the 

United Way, Helping Overcome Poverty’s Existence Goodwill Habitat for Humanity 
of Smyth County. 
 

 

 

 

123



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

M
ap

 o
f 

– 
– 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

– 
– 

– 
O

ra
ng

e 
– 

– 
Ce

nt
er

s 

124



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Public Safety  

s 
rom natural  

in the county is 

 
County.  

 

Center. This center serves an important role  

o s  

callers, 
.  

Within Smyth County, there are two  Public Safety, 
 Law Enforcement, which  the  

 
to calls throughout the county. E  

Public Safety  

Across Smyth County, there are ten   
   s  

with 
cal

personnel st  
.    

  
 

Departments  

 Town of Marion Fire and EMS  
o –  
o 2 –  

 Town of Chilhowie Fire and EMS  
o –  

 Saltville Fire Department  
o –  

 Sugar Grove Fire Department  
o –  

125



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

82 
 

 Sugar Grove Lifesaving Crew  
o –  

 Atkins Fire Department  
o –  

 Smyth County Fire / Rescue  
o –  

 Nebo Fire and Rescue  
o –  
o 8 –  

 Adwolfe Fire Department  9)  
o 9 –  

 Town of Saltville EMS  
o –  

Smyth County Fire – Rescue Academy 

– 

ir 
was 

  

Law Enforcement  

 
-

P
 

 Chilhowie Police Department –  
 Marion Police Department –  
 Saltville Police Department –  

-
- over 

s
 

Control s emergency response throughout s animal s 
cruelty, cares animals,  shelter services 

  . Their 
 

VA.  

126



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

M
ap

 o
f E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Se

rv
ice

s 
Bl

ue
 –

 
– 

Fi
re

 &
 

– 
Ho

sp
ita

l
– 

Sm
yt

h 
Co

un
ty

 F
ire

 &
 R

es
cu

e 
Ac

ad
em

y)
 

127



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

physical well-
are  

 
 L , 

high-  
more  

towns like 
 

, s - , to a 
nry College.  

response is 
 throughout the county 

 The 
s

 

 

Invest in Public Libraries – Currently, 
Without 

 in
ing 

lopmental programs, 

Currently, programing, 
as  

128



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Begin the Redevelopment of Local Community Centers – 
, 

, 
 

  

 – , there are  centers throughout the 
County, with three  

county is not receiving the same level 
 

-
easier access to 

 

 – 
has 

emphasis on the 
 events 

- p

the 

 

in 

 

Invest in Youth Programming – 
, 

giving working parents a place to 
 

 

129



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 – Pre-
-

school year, 
 

those 

rrently, 

o physical, 
speech t

 

s – mergency services was 

 . orking to s 
the Smyth 

 

 -emergency events 
in the county n  
c

 

 – 

t  
to ensure higher-

, 
cross-county projects.  

Increase Community Health Services – 

, the area 

, 
, these 

130



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

- -
across the county.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

131



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

88 

 

132



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

89 

4.2 ECONOMY 

4.2.1 AGRICULTURE 

AGRICULTURE  

 

Farms and Agricultural Land  

 

agricultural sector in Smyth County. Among all 
, 

, there will 
; in Smyth, the 

-

-

 

Farm land Use in Smyth County (Source: USDA 2017 Census of 
Agriculture) 

 

133



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Market Value of Agricultural Products 
Sold 

with 

al market value, while 

 

was a 

, 

 
, with the county 

, 

  

across the county, it is important to note 

,  

sales,  
this category. 

Share of Agricultural Sales by Type in Smyth County (Source: USDA 2017 
Census of Agriculture) 

Agriculture) 

Smyth County Farms by Value of Sales (Source: USDA 2017 Census of 
Agriculture) 

134



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

calves are 

County, 
million, 

th place in the 

th in 

- , with 

Although impressive, historically, 

, with 

present in Smyth County in the 
 

conso
market in Smyth County since 

 

 

5.97 M 

19.7 M 19.9 M 

29.5 M 

37.8 M 

50.0 M 

2017 Census of Agriculture) 

Agriculture) 

 

135



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

92 

, which comprises 

all Ag-

Census, 

, 

; 

 

at least in Smyth County, is not as 

,  

crops. Although not nearly the 

 

 

 

 

Number of Milk Producers in Smyth County (Source: USDA Census of Agriculture) 

Number of Milk Cows in Smyth County (Source: USDA Census of Agriculture) 

Pastoral Scenes  

136



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Farm land Map 

AGRICULTURE CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

The al 

shou
, 

,  

Invest in Smyth County Farmers– 

- , 

will 

 

137



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 – 
, 

that  - A proven way to 

m -H, 

ma
- -

 

Foster Development of Ag Related Business – 

, 
es that were seen as 

 
es 

is a community that has the es 
towns.  

 – 

 

markets. Currently, 

s awareness 
s 

.  

itourism – Agri -

agritourism
agritourism 

-your- -

138



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

-up programs are likely important tools 
agritourism 

 

Review Ordinances to Accommodate Agritourism – 
 to 

 Agritourism uses  

Program – 

,  

 T  not only ensures th
, a precious resource s 

 

Celebrate Farming – 

 agritourism in 
, s through incre

 

Expand / Create a Smyth County Fair – 

-
g 

- 

has 
county-  improvements to the 
current site  allow the   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

140



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.2.2 BUSINESS CENTERS AND CORRIDORS 

-
- 

Smyth 

 

BUSINESS CENTERS AND CORRIDORS CONDITIONS 

 , 
, 

ong I- -

-

in a well- -
-

primarily impacts areas along I-

Atkins area, 

county.  

In comparison to up- -coming villages like 
, in 

, 

 to ensure the economic, 

 

Downtown Chilhowie  

Downtown Marion 

141



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

98 

Retail Market Analysis  

a retail market analysis was 

– 

– 

their money as well as how that 

, 
,  

  -  

 

- , it is clear that the region is a commercial 
-

million
an economic pull.  

 STORE 
SELL

CONSUMERS 
BUY

MARKET LEAKS OR 
GAINS

SMYTH COUNTY $338 M $474 M -$136 M 

30-MINUTE DRIVETIME $1.183 B $954 M $229 M 

30-Minute 
Smyth County Boundary (Red) 

 

142



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

99 

 

retail 
sectors, the largest opportunity 

 

Retail Demand  

In a

outlines in the retail leakage 

 

Retail Sales 

Smyth County. The top three 
sectors with the highest sales 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Furniture Stores 

 

 

143



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

BUSINESS CENTERS AND CORRIDORS CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Smyth County currently hosts 

 

 

Concentrate Business Development Along & Within Villages & Towns – 
ment  , it is important to ensure 

is o
-

Marion, Chilhowie, in have 
 

– Currently, there are two programs 
that have -

Smyth County 

Chilhowie -
 

Build Upon the SmythStrong Program – 
-

-  with the 

represents 
 

Develop a Revolving Grant Program – 

s to support start-ups 

unning as 
 

Create an Incubator Space – -ups not only allows easier access 
 

epreneurs.  

144



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Foster Place-Based Business Development – 

- . Wineries, 

ize on the 

the county. However, these 
 

 
 

 – 

, 
, 

-  

Invest in Expanded Lodging  – 
 

-

 

 – 

rease in tourism is also likely 

 

 – 

- , 
, rism 

 

 

145



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

146



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

4.2.3 INDUSTRY 

INDUSTRY  

 or 

-year terms.  

 

 Palmer Property (Exit 39) -

sewer 
lines.  

 Pathway Park: -
-

 
 North Fork Site: 

 -
 

 Former Brick Plant:  

,  
  

opportunity to re-

electricity. 
 Marion Plaza: 

t, 
, 

 
, they are 

 

147



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 
 

 

 

 

INDUSTRY CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

s 
-

  
, 

 

148



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

– 

 

Celebrate Manufacturing – 

the county,  it 

.  

Partner With Local Schools to Supply Trained Workers – 

well- e 

at 
-in-

  

Partnership With Community Colleges to Provide Training and Retraining Programs Locally– Currently, 

, 

to 
ts 

ctor. 

 in-
 

 

 – The EDA in Smyth County 

, 
 

149



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Establish a Regional Industry Authority – 

, 

ocal 
well-paying  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

150



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

151



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.2.4 TOURISM 

TOURISM  

the Virginia Tourism 

, which is likely 
-

 

 

, with 
, or roughly a 

, 

million.  

-

 

 

 

 

 

 

Direct Visitor Spending in Smyth County Between 2016 and 2021 (Source: the 
 

2021 Direct Visitor Spending by Category (Source: the Virginia Tourism 
 

152



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Direct Visitor Spending 2016-  

Year      Total 
 

       

       

   2.2 2.2   

       

       

       

 

the l  

 
 

2. 

museums  
 

 
 t 

 

 

Direct Visitor Spending 2016-  

153



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Certainly, 
 

Marion, Chilhowie, Saltville, and Smyth County Tourism 

st  

 Appalachian Spirit Gallery – Museum of the Middle Appalachians  
 Burke Print Shop at The                                                                 – Saltville, VA 

Henderson – Park Place Drive-In – Marion, VA 
 Song of the Mountains – Rich Valley Fairground –  
 The Ford Studio – Salt of the Earth Farms – Saltville, VA 
 The Lincoln Theatre – Saltville Civil War Overlook – Saltville, VA 
 The Wayne C. Henderson                                                    Saltville Civil War Sites – Saltville, VA 

School of Appalachian Arts – Saltville Golf Club – Saltville, VA 
 Blue Ridge Discovery Center – Saltville’s Hardy Roberts Memorial Wave  
 Chilhowie Famers Market – Chilhowie, VA                            Pool – Saltville, VA 
 Davis Valley Winery &  – – Atkins, VA 
 Grayson Highlands State Park – Smyth County Museum – Marion, VA 

The Appalachian Trail – Smyth County  
 Hall’s Skateland – The Back of the Dragon – Marion to  
 Hayes Valley Farms – Marion, VA                                             Tazewell, VA 
 Historic Salt Park – The Channels Natural Area Preserve -  
 Holston Hills Country Club – Marion, VA                                  Saltville, VA 
 Hungry Mother State Park – The Civil War Trail in Smyth County - 
 Long Neck Lair Farm –  
 Mount Rogers Headquarters                                              The Claw of the Dragon (Marion Loop) - 

& Visitor Center – Marion, VA                                                    Marion, VA 
 Mount Rogers Scenic Byway – The Octagon House - Marion, VA 
  

& Museum – Marion, VA 

t . 

Regional Tourism and Strategic Plan 

–
, 

Smyth, 

 

 

, to  

154



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 
 

s  
 

 
 

which 
 

 

 

 
 

are 
,  

 

 
 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

       

       

Carroll       

       

       

Giles       

Grayson     9.8  

Montgomery       

Patrick   22.2   22.2 

Pulaski       

       

155



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Smyth       

Washington  98.2     

Wythe       

Regional 
Total 681.2 706.7 747.5 771.6 562.1 838.2 

TOURISM CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 

 – 

, a ese are two 

 

Create a “Digital Welcome Mat” for Smyth County – 

-to- -appointe
 

-
s  

. 
, s 

 

Create Tourist Hubs – 
shopping, restaurants,   

have similar tourist-
ant to create a physical 

– -2021 (Source: the Virginia 
 

156



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

current assets that are well-
Theatre, Smyth County Visitor Center

 

 - 

, just to name a 
-

are not lost to other 
 

Create the Smyth County Economic Development and Tourism Department – 

-
 -in- the 

are nomic growth over the 
 

 – 

-

such as H
the 

may not  to the county 
 

Market Smyth County as “The Basecamp of SWVA” – 

, 
- -

-  

shopping. 

Invest in Expanded Lodging  – 
motels) 

tourists to stay in the county.   

 

157



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

158



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

44.3 P  

 

4.3.1 PUBLIC UTILITES 

 

Water  

 
the county, the 

 service 
, 

, 
 

 

Smyth County  

 Watson Gap Water Subsystem

with chlorine. 
This system operates in  

 
 Walker Creek Subsystem L

the 

This system operates in   
 L

s

The current capacity is roughly 
.  

  

, ,  the 
lower pressure gets; 

 

159



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

  

T
 

  
-

, with the 
site  

 
  

 -to-8-
, 

with the  
 

 St. 
-to-8-

s 
es    

  
- -

County 
-

w
 

Town of Chilhowie s  

 T

which is co-op

two ve pressure zones, seven  storage 

Creek community.  

Town of Marion  

 T

ings. 
The water treatment plant is in western Marion along the 

two  
pressure zones,   

160



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

. 
 

Rye Valley Water Authority  

 T
 springs as 

two to eight inches with two pressure zones, 
one two 

high-pressure 
, 

.  

 Town of Saltville  

 This system serves all areas within the Saltville town as 

two 

   mainline 
one -pn , seven atmospheric storage tanks with a 

, 
-

,  

  

  System This 

n 

,  

. This system currently service
 

Transient Non-Community Water Systems  

-
throughout the year. Within Smyth County,  

  
  
 High Country Horse Camp 
  

161



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 Konnarock Community Center  
  

These 
, 

 

 
-county water sources yearly.  

Areas that are not service  -
Areas 

 

 

Wastewater 

-
 that  

 Saltville Wastewater Treatment Plant T
 pump 

 .  

162



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 Town of Chilhowie Wastewater Treatment Plant T

 
 Town of Marion Wastewater Treatment Plant

 

Solid Waste  

-

ut- -

 

 Locust Cove -  
 - – Camp  
 - –  
 - – Lee Highway, Atkins  
 – – Galliot Vista Drive, Marion 
 – Ceres   

 

 

163



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

Due to 
is 

 are services. 
 

 

 . Through a Smyth, 
, 

all three 
. 

 Smyth, 
Washington, , homes that were 

totally 
. In total, all three counites were 

usinesses  

Within the county, there  Wi-
 

-  

 

several years, 
-

t, 
-zero greenhouse gas emissions 

comm  

Sm

. 
-

in the long term. 

 

164



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

  
2.  

   
 -  
   
  
 -use solar).  

8. 
 

9.  
  

-
- -solar- -online/. 

CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

Currently, 
 are 

, , 

wastewater systems, it is likely that a county-
wastewater 

 

Wastewater Services – 

, 
, 

Spring, 

Currently,  

C
 

Move Towards -Wide Water Authority - 
; , wastewater 

  
 

165



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

county-

.  

– Currently, 
high-  

owns, 

 , 

 

Establish a Solar Energy Ordinance – 
, 

, 

 

Establish a Wind Energy Ordinance – 

prot  

Establish a Regional Biomass Incinerator – 

 
Chilhowie 

nerator 

to generate energy.  

Plan for Natural Gas Power Plants – 

ough there is no natural gas-

 

 – 

lopment are likely to take place 
, . It is important to look to 

 

166



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

167



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

4.3.2 TRANSPORTATION 

 

Roads and Highways 

 
  T their own street 

network

 
. 

 Interstates I- , 
I- , along with US- , creates 

-
Commonwealth. 

 Arterials & Collectors: 
- - - -

Saltville). - -
- -

 
 

Road Ways in Smyth County (Red: : : : 
Orange:  Local ) 

168



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

– Crescent Corridor – I-81 & US-11) 

Map of VTrans Projects Outlined in their 2021 Report 

169



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Smyth County is 
, 

 

VTrans 

long-  the  
 

VTrans
state- VTrans, shorter 

-

project, 

 

VDOT Six-Year Improvement Plan Projects 

 

Smyth County. A chart  

 Interstate 81 Bridge Over Route 11 / Norfolk Southern Railroad/ Middle Fork Holston Rover 
(Completed)
I-

 
 Interstate 81 Southwest Virginia Truck Climbing Lanes (In-Progress): 

I-  in southwest Virginia. These lanes are 

 
  (Completed)  

 
  (Completed): 

- -

170



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 
  (In-Progress): 

, as well 

-
- , 

 .  
 Route 11 Roundabout at Route 660 (Railroad Drive) (In-Progress): 

 to improve this 

  
 

- -Year Plan is a short-term plan that outlines 
 

  In 

-Year-Plan 
  s, as well as the 

 years.  

Smyth County, Virginia – Six-  

UPC  System 
  -29  

 
 I-

 Interstate     

 - I-
 Interstate     

 - I-
 Interstate     

 I-
 Interstate     

 I-  Interstate     
 I-  Interstate     
 I-  Interstate     
 I-  Interstate     

 I-
 Interstate     

 I-
 Interstate     

 I-  Interstate     

 -
 Interstate     

 - 
 Primary     

171



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Smyth County, Virginia – Six-  

UPC  System 
  -29  

 
 - 

 Primary     

 -
 Primary     

 - 
 Primary     

 -  Primary     
 - -

 
Primary     

 -       
 -       
 - -       

 - - -VA 
-       

 - -       
 - -       
 - -       
 -       

       
       

 - 
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

172



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M
ap

 o
f V

DO
T 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

24
 V

DO
T 

Si
x-

Ye
ar

 P
la

n 
Re

po
rt

 (Y
el

lo
w

 –
 

– 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Ro

ad
 

- S
ec

on
da

ry
 R

oa
d 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

) 

173



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 
  

- to ensure accuracy
west to east. A catalog 

-
 

- – Roadway Segments 
    Length Total Crashes  

I-        
-        

I-        
I-       22 
US-        
US-        
US-        
US-        

-     2.88   
US-       98 
I-      29  

-        
US-        
US-        
I-        
I-        

 

- –  

 Locality Total Crashes  
-     
-     
-  Chilhowie   

 Smyth County   
 Smyth County   

 Smyth County   
-

 
Smyth County   

US- Laurel  Smyth County   
US-     
US- -     
US-  Smyth County   
US-  Smyth County   
US-  Smyth County   

174



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

State of Good Repair Program  

 some way. These 
 is applying 

  
has a Some 

such as the I-  segments 
repaving segments -

- - - .  
, 

 

 

Mount Rogers Planning District Commission – Rural Long-  

 Planning District 
Commission  
improvements   plan, . This long-term 

 or O) . 
Currently,  with -to- is 

ng 
projects 

–  

 

 – B                                         - B 
 I-  – Op                                            - B 
 I-  – O           - O 
 I-  – O                        - O    
 – O    - Op 
 – O     I-  - Op 
 – O       - O 
 – Op           – B 
 – S 

 

175



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Segments 

 – O                 - S 
 – O                                        – S  
 – O        - S 
 – O                                - S 
 I-  – O                               - S 
 – O                    - O   
 I-  – O                                   I-  - O 
 I-  – O                     -   
 – S          US-  to W Cherry St - S   
 – S                                       - S   
 – S                                   - S   
 – S      - S   
 – S                                       - - S 
 – S                                       – - S 
 – S                                       I-  - O 
 – S                  I-  - O  
 – S                - O 
 – S                             - S 
 – S                                    - - O 
 – S                                    – - O  
 – S                                       – - S  
 – S                                  – Wash. Co. Line to Palmer Ave - S 
 – S                                         – - S 
 – S     – - S  
 – S     – Wiley Place SCL Saltville - S 
 – S                                       – S 
 – S 

 

 

As with many  across the Commonwealth, long- -term  
 Virginia. 

 
There 

 is  
ies  

 Route 11 (Main Street) / Route 16 (Park Boulevard) – Town of Marion -  
o 

176



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

project looks to  

 other 
currently 

, risks
strategy. This project 

 
 I-81 Improvement Plan  

o This project seeks to improve the I-
  

the  
 

 
      - .988 M 
 -  
 -  
  Lane -  
   MM -  
 -  
 -  
 -  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

177



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Public  

Within Smyth County, 

District Three Governmental 
non-  

services 
, as 

Wytheville, 
 

 

 Weekday and Daily Mountain Lynx Service Across Smyth County 

Typical Mountain Lynx Transit Bus  

178



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Airports  

There is one airport that serves Smyth County, 
, 

his airport also 
- -

Wythe County -

  

 – -  
 – –  
 – –  
 

Regional Airports in and around Smyth County. Black outline represents the borders of Smyth County (Source: Virginia 
 

Mountain Empire Airport Terminal (Groseclose) 

179



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Commercial and Commuter Rail Services  

parallel to I-

, 
uth Carolina, 

 

, 

, 

mo -

 

 
County(Black Checked Line) 

180



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

Park.  

 The Downtown areas of Marion and 
Chilhowie 

-

 
 The Appalachian Trail snakes throughout the 

County, 

 
 Hungry Mother State Park 

 
 

trails within municipal parks, primarily in 

Riverwalk Trail 
as it snakes through Marion.  

 There are a 
r

 
 US Bicycle Route 76 skirts through the 

Mount  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Marion Riverwalk along the Holston River 

 

181



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

-to-
 

Marion. 

 

182



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

A  

Al
l C

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
Tr

ai
l I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 S
m

yt
h 

Co
un

ty
 (M

id
-2

02
3)

 

183



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Electric Vehicles & Charging Infrastructure  

, eighteen-wheeler was unknown to most, 

Although novel to some, the n 
-

 many   
EV charging  Currently, EV charging  , with only nine 

, , 

hat host EV charging . Smyth 
along I- travelers iring charging 

eateries visitors 
vehicles,  , 

 

 

rs

a county-  l scale 
tourist rt work. This 
 travelers alike with an amenity that is currently lacking 

Smyth County

184



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

across the county. 
 Program charging 

 
-

charging , as 
well  

 

 

CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS  

in most cases. 
 

-
with the  

 

Increase Pedestrian and Cyclists Infrastructure – 

- r 

 Partnerships 

 

185



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 to ensure new  
.  

Foster Public-Private Partnerships to Facilitate  – 
tractor-trailers 

-
, 

-  

Improve  Mountain Lynx System – 

, 
system is compris  

s ; 
, Moving  

-
 

into towns, the pr
-  

Increase the Number of Park 
and Rides – Currently, the 
county only hosts one park 

- . 

I-

- -

186



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

-  
-

 

 – 
with . These 

 

ils near the Walmart shopping center 
 sets up the opportunity to 

 in 
to 

Partnerships 

 
gaps.  

 

(Solid Line) & Proposed / Recommended   

DRAFT DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

187



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

of The Rye Valley Rail Trail – A long-

to 
-  

Improve Access to Trails and Greenways – 

, 
  to ensure access is 

 

Salt Trail – -
 

Create Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure – Currently, Smyth County has nine electric vehicle 
   general 

. 
to charge -

- urrently, 
to 

 

188



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

e ,  
 

-

-
, with -   

 
The concepts highlight an opportunity 
through minimally invasive improvements. As  has 

  , this 
project will 
install  -chargers  will 

 
Marion. 

 
restaurants As 

concept   to increase  a
.  

In this concept, , with all the 
enjoy remaining in place. However, new    

-
electric v   

 

189



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

s 
presents  

. 

Smyth County
-

chargers  
chargers that 

 
charger vehicle in 

minutes, is 
However, 

the concepts 

-
 

 

190



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

. In total
 

county with   comprise 
 in Southwest Virginia. 

, this charging  ly 
. However, given the placement , 

Virginia, 

those with electric vehicles. 

Improve Town Gateways – 
, 

stellar 
visual 

Chilhowie as well.  

 - 
- -

isitor 

 

 – with 
-

as o

 

 

191



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

4.4.1 Natural Resources 

192



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

44.4  

4.4.1 NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

Natural Features 

County , 
 

, 

State Park), with the remai hin 

, 

 

, 
, 

ons 
-  

 

the mountainous regions in the 
 the state. 

Karst Geology Across Virginia (Source: United States Geological Survey (USGS) 

193



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

overuse, causing the water 

-point 

also an issue when 

its or the 

. Within Smyth 
County, karst topography 

county; 

Marion, Chilhowie, Seven 
 

Environmental Quality – Water and Air Quality 

 

en Mile 

, 

hich then 

. 
 

Currently, 

 
region.  

 

 

 

Karst Geology in the Mount Rogers Planning District (Source: Virginia Department of 
Energy) 

194



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Soils and Prime Farm Land 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

Prime   

 are 

  

 

Smyth County 

-western 

 a state, 
local,  

 

Endangered Species  

 
in 

. mmals, 
 

, 

-
  

 

 

195



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & RECOMMENDATIONS 

– Smyth County is, in large part, 

  to connect with nature, 

 

Support the Growth of Well-  – 

ensuring environmental 
paperwork 

 

196



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 – 

- eas 

s 
, which 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

197



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Resources 

198



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

4.4.2 CULTURAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES 

 

W
e 

 

th 
 Peoples. In the 

-

hat 

ntucky 
–  

-
, 

st  

, 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Aspenvale Cemetery  

The primary 
-

l

penvale 
.  

 

ailing. The property 

 a regionally 

 

H.L. Bonham House  

ho

 

Aspenvale Cemetery (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

Resources) 

H.L. Bonham House (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

200



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Chilhowie Methodist Episcopal Church  

-
this church s
country churches that are prominent across the region. There is 

.  

 

 

Downtown Chilhowie Historic District 

The Downtown Chilhowie Historic District is a small 
I-  in the western 

- th-

, the commercial 

 

 

Fox Farm Site  

to 
th 

th centuries

ving along the coasts 

, 
 

Chilhowie Methodist Episcopal Church (Source: 
Virginia Department of Historic Resources) 

Downtown Chilhowie Historic District (Source: Virginia 
Department of Historic Resources) 

Fox Farm Site (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

201



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

R.T. Greer and Co. Building 

, , was once home 
.

, 

, 

. 
 

 

 

 

Henderson Building – Southwestern State Hospital 

was the 

Virginia

Louisville, Kentucky, 

a
nce-

 

 

Hungry Mother State Park Historic District 

The Hungry Mother State Park Historic District is 

 
 

R.T. Greer and Co. Building (Source: Virginia 
Department of Historic Resources) 

Henderson Building (Source: Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources) 

Hungry Mother State Park Historic District (Source: 
Virginia Department of Historic Resources) 

202



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Konnarock Training School  

 Lutheran Church in 
America. The school serve  

the cultural, 

 
, 

architects 

on site that was  

, 
Service.   

 

Lincoln Theatre 

s movie-palace 

which is  

g

ts  
seats 

theatre was 

Currently, the theatre hosts musical acts  

Konnarock Training School (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

 

203



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

The Hotel Lincoln  

th 

, 

-

ing 
serves as a pr

 

The Marion Historic District  

th to early 
th 

in a that was 
is -Arts-style 

 

The Marion Male Academy 

l
, 

at a private co-

 an all-

, 
school 

private  

Francis Marion Hotel (Source: Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources) 

Marion Historic District (Source: Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources) 

Marion Historic District (Source: Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources) 

204



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Marion Norfolk & Western Railway Depot  

 PA,  

, 
commercial space.  

Old Stone Tavern  

th century. This tavern 

l

-level gallery with 

Smyth County. 

Preston House 

Carter 

 
, ; in the same year, 

troops e on.  

Marion Norfolk & Western Railway Depot (Source: Virginia 
Department of Historic Resources) 

The Old Stone Tavern (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

Preston House (Source: Virginia Department of Historic Resources) 

205



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

st 
 , in which 

with the Saltville saltworks, as well 

also three s that survive; 

 

 

Saltville Historic District  

The Saltville Historic District 

Saltville. Mathieson-Alkali Works 

, 

; these releases 

, wh
structures comprise the southern 

.  

Historic Resources) 

Saltville Historic District (Source: Virginia Department of Historic Resources) 

206



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

-Walker House 

-

-

 

 

 

 

Smyth County Community 
Hospital 

The Smyth County 
Community Hospital was 

i

state- -the-art circular 

, 
- i ly style  

 
.  

 

-

 as a the most 

th more interior space 

 

-Walker House (Source: Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources)

Smyth County Community Hospital (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources) 

Abijah Thomas House (Source: Virginia Department of Historic 
Resources)

207



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

Cultural and Historic Resources Maps  

 

 

 

208



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

 

 The Smyth County Historical Society & Museum  
o 

-
-

 was 
 

  
o in ng 

 

.  
  

o This non-

 
  

o This museum, , 

-
works to increase awareness a  

  
o 

 

 

 

 

 

209



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

, OPPORTUNITES, & 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Establish  – While not a high priority in the previous 

the 

o s 
, 

cultural assets.  

 - 

that the 

 

 – 

ps 

 

 – 

 

Address Funding Issues – -to-

 

resources to ensure they are all 
-op 

 

210



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

throughout the  
 

211



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

212



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

44.5 LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT 

-
 

.  

Land Use and  

 

-
 

 

Land Cover Category  Percent of County 
Area 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

 

 

 

213



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

Managing Land Development 

-range 

its 

with i

its  

Smyth County Zoning Ordinances  

 

  

 
 Mountain Empire Airport / Smyth-Wythe 

Airport Commission 

214



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Smyth County Zoning Ordinance  

 

  
 

-
 

 
these areas 

 

 

homes  
 

s. 

 

 

 

allow  to accumulate. 

 

 

 
   

 

  
 

 
 

s
 

 

 

 

 

 

215



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT CHALLENGES, OPPORTUNITIES, & 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

, 
, 

 
 

Ensure that Current Land Use and Zoning Ordinances Match – , it was 

comprehensive plan.  

Ensure Future Land Use Complements Town Land Use – 

rge 
-comple

an issue in the past ,  

Implement Segmented & Detailed  – 
 

-

-
- , 

currently host low-
 

-

I- s.  

 – 
, 

, , 

216



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

Future Land Use Categories 

 County. 

Future Land Use Categories, PlanSmyth 2044 
 

 Density/ Intensity Development Character 

Mount  

the county.  
 
Scenic Parkway Overlay 

 or 
scenic value to the county. In these , 
signage

 
, w  

 

  
 

Development  
  
  
 Agriculture 

  
 

 
  
  
 Agriculture 

 
 Density/ Intensity Development Character 

217



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

generally 

, or 

 

 

Development  
  
  

 

  
 

 
  
  
 

 
 

Agriculture  
 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

-
typically one or more single-  

. These 
areas may water, 

,  unlikely to 
 or water. Water 

s
areas. 

  Large 
Lots) 

 Minor 

 
 

 
 

 Some p u
   

 away 
 

 
  

R   
 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

218



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 
county that are rural in nature. These areas 

, with lots likely 
two acres. These areas are 

single-  homes 
Smaller scale 

. 
water  with 

sewer 
these services are lower priority than in more 

 

 2  
  

  
 

 Some 
 

 

Chilhowie) 
 

 

Village    
 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

Village 
county that are service  some 

 
important 

single-  

townhomes,  
These areas likely have access  
water sewers. 

 
 

 Small to 
 

  to   
lots  

 Single-family
2-
acre 

 -Family  
-

/ acre  
 

 
or areas with easy access to 

 
  
 

 
 Muli-

 

 

219



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

all 
 

 

these areas -
  apartments, 

-use 

  

 Smaller lots 
 High Density 

Developments 
 Single-family

2-
acre 

 -Family
-  

/ acre 
 

 
 

 

 
 Easy Access, within walking 

social services, shopping, 
 

 
 

 

Rural Village     
 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

Village 

ernet, 
 These 

 
 small scale 

, 
res, restaurants, 

Police, Social Services). 

 

Development 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

small-town atmosphere 
 

Commercial / Industrial   

220



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

 
 

- -
commercial 

-
- -casual restaurants, gas 

  
-

s. 
 

 

 

along 

rather than 
strip 

 
 

  
 

 
 services 
 

access  
 

 
 Density/ Intensity Developmental Character 

-
-

ounty 
s 

 
 
Energy Priority Areas 

solar  

-
are typically a
have easy access to  
 

 Large areas 

host energy 

assets 
 

commercial 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 Security Elements  

 

 

Future Land Use Map 

221



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 is  pages. This 

 

 
Conservation  

 
the county. Scenic transportation that traverse especially scenic or 
culturally  , are to 

  
 
Recreation  

that works closely with Conservation. These areas 
s minimally invasive 

county represents a large area where this category is 
  

 
Agriculture 

-

areas o , such as solar 
, 

  
 
Rural Residential (Low Density)  

represents 
 r likely 

 are unlikely or  

population centers.  
 

 
areas likely most 

utilities such as electricity, sewers. These areas are 
near population centers s 

 as well as 
smaller villages. 

222



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 
Urban Residential 

likely 
- shopping restaurants as well as apartments, 

 zones have 
amenities 

, as well as areas that are likely  in the 
.  

 
Rural Village 

 
 commercial  

more rural population. Typically, se areas 
represent . 
 
Commercial / Industrial  
Commercial /  commercial 

uses transportation 
, I-  encompass  

  
 
Energy  
Energy 

a highway, at a 
terminus or gather place 

. 
-stations 

 
 
Public / Institutional 

 
or park, or are  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

223



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

224



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

225



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

226



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

Maintaining Rural Character & Managing Development 

Smyth 
County 

 

opment 
-  

, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

227



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

V. Smyth  

Comprehensive Plan. 
projects to 

 To ensure this,  in the process to 
enlist all  to ensure they are  . 

plan, they cannot go it 
alone, 

agencies to see  

 

 there were numerous 
. These projects serve as 

jumping across 
common goal  

  

–   
The a   h , young  

in or looking to relocate to Smyth 

 
 

towns in the county 
, with smaller 

.  

PUDs, or   
typically host more sparse housing. These areas are not 

 with local governments. The result is 

.  

 

228



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

Example of a PUD showcasing single-  

Example of a Neighborhood Common featuring small businesses and  

229



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 that enhance in 
, 

Appendix B. 

–   

-ups through gran

, – -how – cally 

space to support small  in their early stages. 
, 

 

The concept to the right, 

can have on improving the 
entrepreneurial 
community. This 

, large, , 
hang 

visitors an 

 person 
 

 to launch Smyth 

entrepreneurial ecosystem to 

programs. 

the 
property  
Main Street 

 

 

230



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 

  are 
Appendix B. 

 

– Holston River  Ways  

region

Manage

trails, as  

parity, 

, parity, 

, there 
 

The Holston River Blue Ways, each  as well 
as the Hungry Mother Creek Greenway

 represents currently s that 
strategically   
County. typical site layouts  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

231



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

La
un

ch
 P

oi
nt

s A
lo

ng
 th

e 
No

rt
h 

Fo
rk

 o
f t

he
 H

ol
st

on
 R

iv
er

 B
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Ri

ch
 V

al
le

y 
Fa

ir 
&

 S
al

tv
ill

e 
(1

3.
75

 M
ile

s)
 

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

232



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M
id

dl
e 

Fo
rk

 o
f t

he
 H

ol
st

on
 R

iv
er

 B
et

w
ee

n 
M

ar
io

n 
&

 C
hi

lh
ow

ie
 (1

6.
15

 M
ile

s)
 

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

233



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

So
ut

h 
Fo

rk
 o

f t
he

 H
ol

st
on

 R
iv

er
 

 (1
2.

3 
M

ile
s)

 

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

234



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

-
visualize these sites county with 
is an  a  

This  the sites on 
-car 

, an 
t launch,  

throughout, a well-  a gate to ensure the site is 
 

 of an “Ideal”  Launch Site Along the Holston River 

Site Plan for an “Ideal” Launch Site Along the Holston River 

235



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Another project that 
ng 

A project in its , the Hungry Mother Creek 
Greenway 

 length.  

This greenway has the 
create a walking 

will 
complete a major gap in 

 current trail 
systems. Currently, Hungry 
Mother State Park, one 

 home to roughly 

cycling trails, with the 

the 
. The image to 

 
what  along 
the  length 
look like. This 

-  asphalt 
pathway, grass or trees on 

users remain on the trail. 

Greenway s placement along 
Hungry Mother Creek 

pro ). The image 
to the right shows a 

that is currently 

Creeper Trail, which 

 
 

its 
  

10 Foot Asphalt 

Security Fence 

Grass 

Greenway Corridor (Greenbelt Trail -  

Footbridge Example  (Virginia Creeper Trail – Damascus  

Metal Span 

Wooden Approach 
Decking 

Overhead 
Lighting 

Informational 
Signage 

Wooden 
Handrails 

236



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

o
Greenway places where 

places where 
 

Proposed  Corridor of the Hungry Mother Creek Greenway (Total 6.4 Miles in Length) 

CONCEPT 

237



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

are 
Appendix B. 

RRural Economic Development –  Grove “Trail ” Micro- -Use Concept   
 

on 

ty will guarantee 

 

The Sugar Grove “Trail Town” Micro-Mixed-Use Concept Sugar Grove that 
maintains its rural character, all the while capitalizing Appalachian Trail, Mount 

commercial  
  

  are 
Appendix B. 

Concept of the Sugar Grove “Trail Village” Micro-Mixed Use  Village

CONCEPT 

238



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

CCommunity Cohesion – Spaces 
, -knit 

 . Yet, it 
was also s  

-to-  
-

 
 community cohesion in 

Smyth County. 

  
New F  makes the county 

telling 

to gather, New 
Community Spaces   community centers  

st- -

municipal governments, lo es
improve community cohesion throughout Smyth County.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

239



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Rural Concept – Rich Valley Fair 

The concept shown   well-known site in the county that 
to a well-   Currently regionally known 
annual istorically

ng musical  up- -coming country 
musicians passing thr o 

to allow musicians to 
.  

This concept 
, pervious parking space, improvement to 

 

 

  
 showcase  

 

the Rich Valley Fair  

CONCEPT CONCEPT 

240



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Urban Community Gathering Space  

are prime 
 community events spaces.  

 the local economy . 
especially 

green spaces
villages  
local municipality, etc. music 

 its 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Interior concept of The Music Box
enjoying live. 

241



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 

Community Center Redevelopment Blueprint – Adwolfe Community Center 

Comprehensive Plan is that although 

centers 
 

people toss a 

groups; , the  s 
play 
center, in this case, 

 
 near  

 
courts, 
this concept proposes luncheons -
together, as well as an With 

   living 
,  

 

 

Concept of a Redeveloped Adolfe Community Center –  

CONCEPT CONCEPT 

242



Smyth County Comprehensive Plan – PlanSmyth 2044 

 
 

 community cohesion  
 Appendix B. 

5.1  

 
-term goals 

m  programs. 
 

 

 

 

243



244


	Agenda
	Packet Summary
	Dangerous Dog Public Hearing
	February 8th Minutes
	Appointment Committee
	Parks and Recreation Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Planning Commission Packet



